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Page 237 Page 239
1 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on Thursday, January 24, 1 reviewing budgets and district policies.
2 2002, commencing at the hour of 10:05 am., thereof, at 2 Do you seethat?
3 theoffices of Morrison & Forester, 400 Capitol Mall, 3 A. Yes.
4 26th Floor, Sacramento, California, before me, 4 Q. Andwas-- isthat referring to your job on the
5 TRACY LEE MOORELAND, a Certified Shorthand Reporter in 5 saff of the LAUSD?
6 the State of Cdlifornia, there personally appeared 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
7 JOHN MOCKLER, 7 Lacksfoundation asto what's being referred to since
8 called as awitness herein, who, having been previously 8 Mr. Mockler is not the author of this.
9 duly sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth, and 9 THE WITNESS: What isyour question?
10 nothing but the truth, was thereupon examined and 10 MR. JACOBS:. Can you read it back, please.
11 interrogated as hereinafter set forth. 11 (Record read.)
12 --000-- 12 MR. VIRJEE: Also objection. Vague and
13 (Exhibit SAD-244 was marked.) 13 ambiguous asto "staff of the LAUSD."
14 (Mr. Hajela not present.) 14 THE WITNESS: | reported to the Board of
15 EXAMINATION BY MR. JACOBS 15 Educationin Los Angelesin the capacity as director of
16 Q.  Good morning, Mr. Mockler. 16 theindependent analysis unit.
17 A.  Good morning. 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwasone of thefunctionsin
18 Q.  Youunderstand you're still under oath? 18 that capacity to review budgets and district policies?
19 A Yes. 19 A. Yes.
20 MR. JACOBS:. Abe Haelais not here, but he has 20 Q. Inthecourseof your -- of that position, did
21 apparently told us that we can start without him. 21 you develop aview asto the relative costs of education
22 Q.  Weve marked as Exhibit 244 a printout of an 22 inLos Angeles as opposed to the costsin some or all
23 article from the Los Angeles Times dated July 22nd, 23 school districtsin the state?
24 2000, interim education secretary named, John B. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 Mockler, executive director of the State Board of 25 to"costsof education." Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks
Page 238 Page 240
1 Educationwill fill thejob, at least until the year's 1 foundation. Incomplete hypothetical.
2 end 2 THE WITNESS: | don't know what you mean.
3 Mr. Mockler, in the third paragraph the 3 "Relative' and "costs," what do those two terms mean to
4 paragraph states, Mockler is an influential Sacramento 4 you?
5 insider, asdf-described, quote, education finance and 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What's ambiguous about that?
6 poalicy junkie, close quote, who has spent three decades 6 A. Costs, what are costs? Arethey expenditures?
7 inand out of state government. 7 MR. JACOBS: Expenditures.
8 First question to you, are you a self-described 8 THE WITNESS: No.
9 education finance and policy junkie? 9 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andhow about -- and by
10 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking whether he's 10 "expenditures," did you mean actud expenditures as
11 describing himsdlf that way? 11 opposed to desirable expenditures?
12 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 THE WITNESS: Y eah. 13 to"desirable expenditures.”
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat did you meanbythat? | 14 THE WITNESS: | just answered your question.
15 A. | meantit'safunand interesting subject that 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: No, you did not. My question
16 | spendtimeat. 16 is, what did you mean by "expenditures'?
17 Q. Andthe subject being educetion finance and 17 A.  Theamount of money spent in aschool district
18 policy? 18 onitsstudents.
19 A Yes 19 Q. Anddidyou develop any view asto whether the
20 Q. Andtheninthe paragraph 4 up fromthe 20 sameamount of expendituresin Los Angeles as opposed to
21 bottom -- 21 inother school districts around the state delivered the
22 MR. VIRJEE: Starting outside of Sacramento? 22 sameresultsto the classroom?
23 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
24 Q. Itsays, outside of Sacramento Mockler worked 24  Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto
25 three yearsfor the Los Angeles Board of Education 25 "expenditures’ and "resultsto the classroom."
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Incomplete hypothetical. Callsfor speculation. Calls
for an expert opinion.
THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyoudevelop aview asto
the costs of school constructionin Los Angeles as
opposed to other areas of the state?
A, Yes ‘
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "costs." He's answered the question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwasthat the basisfor your
testimony yesterday that you thought it cost, in the mid
'80s, roughly doublein Los Angeleswhat it costsin
average across the state?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his
testimony, but his testimony will speak for itself
THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That view was developed later?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfacts.
Assumes that you've characterized his view correctly.
Y ou don't have to assume that smply because
he's characterized it that way.
THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That was not your view?
A.  What wasnot my view?
Q.  Whyisyour answer "no" to my previous
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in your position on the staff of the LAUSD?

A.  Technicdly, no. Costsof land I've known
about for -- there and other times.

Q. Andareyou aware of any other differentia
costs of -- let me start over again.

Costs of land is the cost of an input into the
building of schooals, correct?

A.  Correct.
Q. Andit'stherefore the cost of aninput into
education, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "education” and "input.”

THE WITNESS: Not as generally discussed,
but --

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asgeneraly discussed landis
not regarded as an input or --

A. It'sgeneraly discussed, facility costs are

separate from norma comparisons of costs of education.
Q. Areyouaware of any other dataregarding
differential costs of education in LAUSD as opposed to
statewide averages?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Cdls for an expert opinion, and also
vague astotime.

THE WITNESS: | don't understand the question.
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guestion?
A.  Because you asked whether or not | developed an
opinion during a period of time as to school
construction.
Q. And did you develop such an opinion at any
time, that is, the costs of school construction in Los
Angeles as opposed to other areas of the state?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "costs of school construction.”

THEWITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereyou basing your testimony
yesterday on input provided you by the LAUSD instead of
your own opinion on the subject?
A. No.
Q. Sowheredid the 28,000 versus 14,000 cost per
building -- per classroom cost, wasit, | think?

MR. JORDAN: Per student.

MR. JACOBS: Per student cost.
Q.  Wheredid that information come from?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his
testimony and calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: Cost of land.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asopposed to construction?
A. Yes
Q. Didyou develop that cost of land understanding
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Arewe referring to facilities now?

MR. JACOBS: Any educationa costs.

MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: Only vaguely.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By vaguely you have agenerd
understanding that it is more costly in Los Angelesto
provide education than in other areas?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "codtly," and vague asto time. Cdls for
speculation.

THE WITNESS: Thereis some evidence of cost
differentias, not specificaly related to LA.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat isit specifically
related to or related generaly to?

A.  Thecostsof overcoming initia deficits of
students who come to your school.

Q. Andareyou referring to any particular dataor
studiesin that connection?

A. No.

Q. Arethereany other indicators of differentia
costs as between some kinds of school districts and
others?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor speculation.

MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague and ambiguous asto
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Page 245 Page 247
1 differential of costs because you didn't use education 1 shown.
2 especidly thistime. 2 Q. Andtherefore-- and sojust to try and move
3 MR. JACOBS: | meant differential costs of 3 thisalong, | takeit that you say it bears looking at
4 education. 4 because you don't think those studies have necessarily
5 THE WITNESS: | have ageneral understandingof | 5 addressed dl the factors that might attract teachersto
6 that, but no specific citations. 6 aparticular work site; isthat correct?
7 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And isthe genera 7 A. Therearealot of studies, none of which are
8 understanding that there are -- beyond the issue of 8 asparticular asthey might be. There are many studies
9 initial deficits there are other reasons to believe that 9 that havealot of different views on that.
10 it may be more costly to provide comparable input, 10 Q. Andby "bear looking at" you mean that, in your
11 educational inputs in some kinds of school districts 11 opinion, it would be useful to look at al those studies
12 than others? 12 and then see whether additional research needsto be
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 13 doneto determine whether the whole package of factors
14 Lacksfoundation. Calsfor an expert opinion. 14 that might draw ateacher to a particular -- to teach or
15 THE WITNESS: | am aware of some studies, but 15 toaparticular teaching location need to be examined?
16 not any particular one | could reference with respect to 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
17 avariety of input costs. 17 Calsfor aninadmissible opinion.
18 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And what input costs do you 18 THEWITNESS: My opinion isthet, yes, that
19 havein mind? 19 bearsalook at.
20 A.  Transportation, disproportionate share of 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let meask you about the Little
21 handicapped students, maintenance of old facilities. 21 Hoover Commission report that we will mark as 245.
22 That'sal I can remember right now. 22 (Exhibit SAD-245 was marked.)
23 Q. And how about teacher compensation or thelabor | 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Exhibit 245 isentitled dollars
24  market for teachers, isthat input that you have any 24 and sense, asimple approach to school finance. It'sa
25 information about differential costs? 25 web printout of the report dated July 1997.
Page 246 Page 248
1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 In terms of your -- where you pop up,
2 to "teacher compensation” and teacher availability. 2 Mr. Mockler, you're noted as having been awitness at a
3 THE WITNESS: With respect to LA Unified? 3 public hearing on February 26th, that's toward the back.
4 MR. JACOBS:. No, weve now moved away from any 4 The numbering started again with each chapter, | guess,
5 particular school district. 5 andthisisappendix B, and it's noted as page 4 of 5.
6 THE WITNESS: There are studies that assert 6 If you could look at that and tell me whether
7 differentia costs of some districts over others with 7 youwere, infact, awitness at a public hearing of the
8 respect to sdaries. 8 Little Hoover Commission education finance hearings?
9 Q. BY MR JACOBS: And haveyou formed an opinion 9 MR. VIRJEE: Isthat appendix "B," asin boy?
10 astowhether the conclusion of those studiesis vdid? 10 MR. JACOBS: Y eah.
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 11 (Record read.)
12 evidence. Cdlsfor speculation asto the conclusions 12 THE WITNESS: | was awitness at the Little
13 of those studies. 13 Hoover Commission. The date escapesme. That'stheir
14 THE WITNESS: If you're asking for my opinion 14 record. | don't know if it's public or not. Seemed to
15 not my analysis, my opinion isthat there are -- some of 15 beinaprivate room. But, yes.
16 those studies bear looking a with respect to costs 16 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Let meask you first about the
17 of -- generdized costs of attracting and retaining 17 Little Hoover Commission's -- whether you have an
18 teachers. 18 opinion asto the usefulness of the Little Hoover
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "bear looking at," what 19 Commission'swork on education generaly.
20 doyou mean? 20 (Mr. Hgjdla entered the room.)
21 A.  Whyteacherswork wherethey work isavery 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
22 complicated subject. If you're speaking of 22 Lacksfoundation. Overbroad and vague, and ambiguous as
23 compensation, you have one very small piece of the 23 to"usefulness.”
24 puzzle. The other part of the puzzle are conditions 24 THE WITNESS: In general 1'd give them about a
25 under which they work and the respect which they're 25 D-plusover time, with some exceptions.
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1 Q BY MR JACOBS: Anddidyousay"D," asindog? 1 outlining problems, and a"D" in proposing solutions.
2 A. "D/asindog. 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Now, onpage?2 of 5of the
3 Q. Andwhyisthat? 3 executive summary the report states, once reform

4 A. Theylack research capacity to fully understand 4 discussions are underway, specific changes that

5 the subjectsthat they grapple with, athough that's not 5 policymakers should make include adopting a white neck

6 awaystrue. Education, that's generally true. 6 Mockler-style modd that provides school districts with

7 Q. And by "research capacity,” what do you mean? 7 equd basic grants, plus proportionate funding for

8 A. | meanthe capacity to test out assertions made 8 gpecia needs and specia costs.

9 by witnesses. 9 Do you see that?

10 Q. And by testing out, what do you mean? 10 A,  Yes
11 A.  If I tel youmy cat cantalk, you'd probably 11 Q. Haveyou -- doyou have an understanding of
12 want to find out whether my cat can really talk. 12 what is meant there by the reference to a white neck
13 Q. Inthecontext of education, however, | suspect 13 Mockler-style modd?
14 your answer isit's case by case, it depends on what the 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
15 witnessis asserting what you would view as necessary to 15 Lacks foundation as to what the author or authors might
16 testitout, correct? 16 have meant.
17 A. That'scorrect. 17 THEWITNESS: Yes.
18 Q. Yousadtherewere some exceptionsto that. | 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isthat?
19 takeit that you mean there are some particular reports 19 A. | thoughtit wasinthereport somewhere. The
20 that you have regarded as making a significant 20 commission asked us independently to propose a
21 contribution to the education policy debate; is that 21 simplification mode for the complicated school finance
22 correct? 22 system. We both proposed one. They're somewhat
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 23 dsmilar. Sothereis no white neck Mockler style,
24 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto 24 Q.  What wasyour proposa?
25 "significant" and "education policy debate." 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. To the extent the
Page 250 Page 252

1 THE WITNESS: Actualy, | was referring to some 1 document iswritten, it speaksfor itsdlf. Also cals

2 work they did on nursing homes that | thought was pretty 2 for speculation since it's been quite awhile.

3 good. 3 THEWITNESS: Thisislikefiveyearsago. If

4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anyinthe education areathat 4 youcanfindit.

5 you regard as pretty good? 5 MR. JACOBS: Take aminute becausetherearea

6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 6 couple of different places where the overdl school

7 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. 7 financeisdiscussed.

8 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "pretty 8 (Ms. Duffy l&ft the room.)

9 good." Overbroad. 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | canrefer you, sir, to the
10 THE WITNESS: Not that | recal. Youd haveto 10 chapter entitled system, which is about hafway into the
11 bring them to my attention. 11 document.

12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did you read thisreport when 12 A. Isthere anumber in the top right?

13 it cameout, dollars and sense? 13 Q. Pageldof 17. Andweregoingtotry and

14 A. Patofit, yesh. 14 print out the side bar on page 15 of 17.

15 Q. Andwhat wasyour -- did you form an overall 15 The document states, one long-time education
16 opinion asto quality? 16 expert, John Mockler of Strategic Education Services,
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 17 gavethe commission awhimsicaly titled but serious
18 to"qudlity." Vagueastotime. 18 modd to simplify and beef up education funding.

19 THE WITNESS: Thisis-- yeah, | think it would 19 Do you see that?

20 beaC-plus. 20 A. Yes

21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: C-plus. By "C-plus," what do 21 Q. Andthenit goeson to describe a package of
22 youintend to convey in terms of your assessment of it? 22 funding, | guess, certain categories of services; is

23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 23 that right?

24 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Overly broad. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The document speaks
25 THE WITNESS: | would giveitan"A" in 25 foritsdf. Areyou asking what the document says?
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MR. JACOBS: I'm asking what your proposal was.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also the document speaks for itself.

If you recall.

THE WITNESS: | recall that they asked at the
mesting, give us how to simplify the system, and |
outlined a system that would be simple. And as
whimsical, | think would be -- but it reflected amode
that | thought would cover the core values of school
finance. | can't recdl the specifics of it, but it's
smple.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "corevalues," first of
all, isthat aterm that you used at the time?

A. No.

Q.  Sowhat do you mean today by core values of
education?

MR. VIRJEE: What does he mean today?

MR. JACOBS: He used that phrase just a second
ago.

MR. VIRJEE: I'm confused about are you asking
what he meant when he outlined this proposal, or when he
uses that term today?

MR. JACOBS: Thelatter.

MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks
foundation. There's been no indication he uses that
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "modd” and "advocate.”

THE WITNESS: Variaionsof it, yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Inwhat context?

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: Whenever -- when people ask me
about what the system -- where the system ought to go, |
reference asimilar model.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And have you done any further
elaboration of the moddl?

A. ltakaboutitalot. I'd havetorecal. |

mean, it's certainly something I'm aware of and talk

about.

Q. If somebody said toyou -- I'll say it toyou

now, if | want to go and find the best -- in your

judgment the best iteration of the model, what would |
look at?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "iteration,” "model," and vague asto time.

MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor
speculaion.

THE WITNESS: | can't get my hands right now on
what that might be or where that would be. Thishad it,
other people had it.
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term today.

THEWITNESS: | said core values of school
finance.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat do you mean by that?
A.  Recognizing basic needs of abasic system,
recognizing the disproportionate distribution of specia
needs students and recognizing the disproportionate
specid costs wherethey'reidentified. There's
essentialy, | guess, five levels.
Q.  And did you make this proposal in the form of a
paper that you contributed?
A. lthinkitwasjust -- | think | just did it.
| believe it was one page. | don't redlly recall what
it was.

MR. VIRJEE: Don't guessor speculate. He's
entitled to your best recollection.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did you do anything further
with the proposal?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "do anything further."

THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And how about with the notion
of the essential mode that you proposed, have you
advocated such amodd in -- since the Little Hoover
Commission report?
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou had occasion to
compare the education finance system as of the year
2000, 2001 or 2002 against the model that you were
referring to?

A. No.

Q. Haveyou had occasion to discuss that topicin
other than cocktail party chatter?

MR. VIRJEE: Discusswhich topic, the
comparison of the two?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

MR. VIRJEE: Hejust said he hasn't made the
comparison.

MR. JACOBS: I'maskingit alittle
differently.

MR. VIRJEE: Okay. Objection. Vague and
ambiguous. | don't know how you can discussit if you
don't make the comparison. Nonsensical.

THE WITNESS: | talk about this subject often.
| can't give you any specificsoniit.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou written any interna
Memos on -- since you've been back in state

government -- since you've been in state government in
this last several years on the model?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "in state government." Calls for speculation. Lacks
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1 foundation. Misstatesthe factsthat he's been back at 1 occurrences and presuming them to be a policy violation.
2 state government for severa years, and also object on 2 It'sapodlitical statement, not an analysis.
3 thegrounds of official information and attorney/client 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | bdieveyou sad earlier that
4 privilege. 4 you thought the Little Hoover Commission education
5 THE WITNESS: | don't recall having done that. 5 reportsdid a-- my word not yours So you can use your
6 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Now, if youlook at the 6 word again in answering this -- creditable job as
7 introduction, it's about maybe 10 pages or so. 7 opposed to finding solutions.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Any part -- page on the 8 Isthis a case where you think they have not
9 introduction? 9 doneacreditible job of identifying the problem?
10 MR. JACOBS: Thefirst page. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates his
11 MR. VIRJEE: Thank you. 11 testimony. Histestimony speaks for itsdlf.
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: There'saparagraph there, lack 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible
13  of meaningful accountability. Do you seethat? 13 opinion. Lacks foundation.
14 A, |seeit 14 THE WITNESS: | don't believethisis
15 Q. Andthe paragraph states, it is very difficult 15 identification of a problem, thisis a hyperbolic
16 for consumers and taxpayers to get straight answers 16 statement, political statement, not an analytical
17 about what is going on financialy with schools. If a 17 satement of aproblem.
18 parent complains that his child has no textbooks, the 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Solet'shbreak it down alittle
19 teacher pointsto district procedures that delay 19 hit. Thefirst sentence says, it is very difficult for
20 purchasing, and the District points to the State for 20 consumers and taxpayers to get straight answers about
21 failing to provide adequate funding, and the State 21 what is going on financially with schoals.
22 pointsto the District for making poor choices on how to 22 That's atrue statement, isn't it?
23 useitsresources. If ataxpayer wonders why a school 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
24 inhis neighborhood isfalling apart, acting as a magnet 24 Lacksfoundation. Overbroad incomplete hypothetical.
25 for vandalism and depressing his property value, the 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible
Page 258 Page 260
1 principa tells him about thelong wait for maintenance 1 opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto "difficult."
2 sarvices, the Didtrict talks about uncooperative voters 2 THE WITNESS: No.
3 and underfunded state assistance, and the State argues 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inwhat way do you disagree
4 that locals have to pay a share of costs because the 4 with that proposition?
5 State cannot afford to underwrite dl of the facilities 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
6 for arapidly expanding school-age population. Blameis 6 THE WITNESS: All information regarding
7 continually shifted both upwards and downwards, and any 7 financing the schoolsis on the Internet. There are
8 desire on the part of the public to help resolve schoal 8 public documents, there's avariety of sources. Itisa
9 financia problems soon evaporates. 9 very public system. It's not difficult.
10 My guestion to you, Sir, iswhat is your 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thenext sentence says, if a
11 assessment of the accuracy of this problem 11 parent complainsthat his child has no textbooks, the
12 identification by the Little Hoover Commission? 12 teacher pointsto district procedures that delay
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Lacks foundation. 13 purchasing and the District points to the State for
14 Cadlisfor speculation. There's no evidence that the 14 failing to provide adequate funding, and the State
15 witness has any in-school experienceat al. Also vague 15 pointsto the District for making poor choices on how to
16 astotime. Alsocdlsfor an expert opinion. 16 useitsresources.
17 (Ms. Duffy entered the room.) 17 Do you disagree with that as having -- as
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Incomplete and 18 identifying a problem worthy of policy attention in
19 improper hypothetical question. 19 Cdifornids public school system?
20 THE WITNESS: Thistype of language is why the 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 Hoover Commission reports have less credibility than 21 to policy worthy of attention. Also cdls for
22 they would otherwise have. 22 speculation and lacks foundation, and incomplete
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why do you say that, sir? 23 hypothetical. Also overbroad and calling for an expert
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 24 opinion.
25 THE WITNESS: Overly broad, taking smdll 25 THE WITNESS: | disagree.
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Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andwhy isthat?
MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.
THE WITNESS: Thelaw isvery clear.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Which law are you referring to,
60119 again?
A.  Aswel asparent complaints, yes.
Q.  And parent complaintsin what context?
A.  Procedures.
Q.  Youretaking about the uniform complaint
procedures?
A. Yes
Q.  Areyou aware of any uniform complaint

procedures that have been invoked in the case of
textbooks?
A. No.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Callsfor alegal opinion.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Just on the textbook point, put
yourself in the place of a parent who is complaining
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information.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Noinformation in the sense of
what?

A.  Wherethisoccurred, did it occur, how it

occurred, what was the circumstance. It's overly broad.
Q. Andthenthelast sentence, blameis

continually shifted both upwards and downwards. Let's
break it up.

Blameis continually shifted both upwards and
downwards. Do you disagree that blame shifting of the
sort described hereis asignificant problem in the
Cdlifornia public school system?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "blame shifting," "significant." And overbroad.
Cdlsfor speculation, and lacks any foundation. Also
vague astotime.

MR. SEFERIAN: Cdllsfor aninadmissible
opinion.

THE WITNESS: The problemwordis
"continualy." Anything is true somewherein the school

21 that hischild has no textbooks. How would you get a 21 system, but, in generd, that's not an accurate
22 sraight answer about what is going on financialy with 22 statement, in my opinion, without researching the issue.
23 respect to textbooks in that school ? 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andany desire on the part of
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 24 the public to hep resolve schoal financia problems
25 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to "straight 25 soon evaporates. 'Y ou disagree with the sentence now
Page 262 Page 264
1 answer" and "financialy" in school. Overbroad. 1 expanded to include the second half aswell, | presume?
2 THE WITNESS: | can't answer that question. It 2 A Yes
3 makesno sense. 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: The question makes no sense? 4 Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation, and vague as
5 A. Right 5 totime
6 Q. Andthenif ataxpayer wonders why the school 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Now, oneof thethingsthe
7 inhisneighborhood isfaling apart, acting as amagnet 7 commission proposed was the building of amodd of what
8 for vandalism and depressing his property value, the 8 ittakesto provide an education. | believeit's best
9 principa tells him about the long wait for maintenance 9 described or most completely described in adequate
10 services, the district talks about uncooperative voters 10 funding under fund HTML. Andthisis probably the last
11 and underfunded state assistance, and the State argues 11 full chapter of thereport. Yes.
12 that locas haveto pay a share of costs because the 12 MR. VIRJEE: Page at thetop right?
13 State cannot afford to underwrite al of the facilities 13 MR. JACOBS: It dtarts 107.
14 for arapidly expanding school-age population, do you 14 MR. VIRJEE: That helps. It does. I'm not
15 disagreethat in this sentence the Little Hoover 15 being facetious.
16 Commission hasidentified a problem worthy of policy 16 MR. JACOBS: | apologize.
17 attention in the California school system? 17 MR. JORDAN: There's a conclusion section that
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 18 follows.
19 to"problem" and "worthy of policy attention." Cdls 19 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
20 for speculation and lacks any foundation. Callsfor an 20 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not always facetious. Is
21 expert opinion and overbroad. 21 there aspecific portion you want him to look at?
22 THEWITNESS: Yes. 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mlooking. | had it before.
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhy isthat? 23 If youlook at page 6 and 7, there's areference to the
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 24  work of the so-called Hanson Committee. Actualy, let
25 THE WITNESS: Becauseit provides them with no 25 meask you, did you have -- did you participate in the
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1 work of the Hanson Committee? 1 MR. JACOBS: Or something ese.
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 2 THE WITNESS: | think at the time the Hoover
3 to"Hanson Committee." 3 Commission was doing their report, | was the only person
4 THE WITNESS: There are only three peoplein 4 that gill had the data from that report in my hands.
5 theworld who remember that. 5 Noonedseinthe state had it.
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou'reoneof them, | 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou referenceit in your
7 suppose. ‘ 7 contribution to this particular study?
8 A. |didnot partici -- | participated asmall 8 A. | might have.
9 amount in their work, but I'm aware of their work. 9 Q. Anddidyoucommend it asauseful modd?
10 Q. Okay. Anddidyou review thereport of the 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
11 Hanson Committee a the time? 11 Lacksfoundation asto what he might have done back
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 12 then.
13 evidence. Assumesthere wasareport. 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
14 THEWITNESS: Yes. 14 "commend.”
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddidyou-- and what were 15 THE WITNESS: | might have. | don't know. |
16 you doing at the time -- what were you doing at that 16 don't remember that. It might have. It's something |
17 time, what was your professiond capacity? 17 know about.
18 MR. VIRJEE: When hewasreviewingit, or in 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisit something that you
19 conjunction with the review, or just generaly at that 19 have offered as representing something that might well
20 time? 20 be considered to be undertaken again?
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Atthattime, what job wereyou 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 in? 22 to"considered to be undertaken again." Vagueasto
23 MR.VIRJEE: In1974? 23 time.
24 MR. JACOBS: If that'swhen the report came 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an
25 out. 25 inadmissible opinion.
Page 266 Page 268
1 Q. Isthataboutright, sir? 1 THE WITNESS: | have advocated that a number of
2 A.  Myrecollectioniswhen the committee first 2 models of how much is enough be developed. Thiswould
3 sarted, | was working for the assembly ways and means 3 beoneof them.
4 committee. 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why do you think it would be
5 Q. Andwasitinthat capacity that you reviewed 5 useful to develop such models?
6 theoutput of the committee? 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
7 MR. VIRJEE: | don't want you to guess or 7 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Vague asto
8 speculate, but he's entitled to your recollection. 8 time
9 THEWITNESS: Later in 74, somewhere around, | 9 THE WITNESS: Becauseit's akin to abusiness
10 think, July or so, | went to work for the Department of 10 plan for schoal finance.
11 Education and worked more on that data at that time. 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By "businessplan," what do you
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And didyouform ajudgment at 12 mean?
13 thetimeasto the utility of the work that the Hanson 13 A. ltisacosting of input model which is useful
14 Committee had done? 14 inlooking and comparing budgets with those models so a
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 15 digtrict could find out whether or not their expenditure
16 to"utility." Calsfor speculation asto what opinion 16 patterns are deviant from that.
17 hemight haveformedin 1974. 17 Q. Andwouldthat alsoadin providing
18 THE WITNESS: | thought it was an important 18 accountability for how adistrict spends its money?
19 addition to the school finance information. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhenthisfirstcameupand | 20 to"accountability."
21 you were smiling about the reference to the Hanson 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.
22 Committee, did that reflect your recollection of the 22 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks
23 qudlity of thework or just the bringing up of what by 23 foundation. Incomplete hypotheticd.
24 now is pretty old history? 24 THE WITNESS: | would say no.
25 MR. VIRJEE: Or something else. 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhy isthat?
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 1 isthat finance models are useful for policy, but not
2 THE WITNESS: My definition of accountability 2 useful for day-to-day decisions which parents need to
3 isoutput, student achievement. 3 make
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou excludefrom 4 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Isit your view that -- let me
5 accountability how the district spendsits money to 5 seeif | can get at your opinion on this topic thisway.
6 obtain student achievement? 6 Some have argued that the answer to some of the input
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Misstatesthe 7 issuesthat this caseis addressing is parental
8 witness testimony. 8 involvement, that parents, for example, if their kids
9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 9 don't have textbooks should be taking whatever steps
10 to how the district spendsits money. 10 they canto get textbooks to their kids if they think
11 THE WITNESS: | don't object to any research. 11 that'scalled for.
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But wouldn't it be useful -- to 12 Inthat context isit useful for parentsto
13 go back to our discussion about parents afew minutes 13 havefinancia modds?
14 ago and aparent trying to find out why some input such 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
15 astextbooks or facilities are not available, would it 15 evidence. Theresbeen--
16 not be useful even for loca accountability for such a 16 MR. JACOBS: Let me withdraw the question.
17 mode to be available? 17 MR. VIRJEE: Fine. Then! don't needto
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 18 object, dthough it's aways fun to object to a
19 to"local accountability.” Callsfor speculation. 19 withdrawn question.
20 Overbroad. 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Some have argued thet the
21 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 21 answer to at least some of the issues that this lawsuit
22 "useful." Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. 22 addresses, i.e., the absence of what the plaintiffs
23 THE WITNESS: No. 23 regard ascritical or essential inputs to education is
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: No, it would not be useful for 24 more parentd involvement in seeing to it that those
25 that purpose? 25 inputsare delivered to their children.
Page 270 Page 272
1 MR. VIRJEE: He answered that question. 1 Do you believe that more parental involvement
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir, no, it would not be useful 2 inseaingtoit that essentia inputsto achild's
3 for that purpose? 3 education are delivered isauseful policy pathto -- on
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered. 4 which to proceed?
5 THE WITNESS: | answered your question no. 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
6 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Just want to make sure were 6 Lacksfoundation. Assumes factsnot in evidence that
7 connected. No, it would not be useful for that purpose? 7 anybody's made that argument. Also vague and ambiguous
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered. 8 asto"useful." Callsfor speculation and overbroad,
9 THE WITNESS: For what purpose? 9 and callsfor an expert opinion. Lacks foundation.
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: For the purpose of aidingin 10 THE WITNESS: It'salarge subject. My opinion
11 accountability at thelocal level to parents? 11 isthat al residents of our state ought beinvolved in
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 thisaswell as parents as part of that, and that the
13 to"accountability at thelocal level to parents.” 13 information as contained in the Hanson report is not
14 Cadlsfor speculation. 14 hedthy for that issue.
15 THE WITNESS: The answer isno. 15 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andwhyisthat? Whyisit not
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why would that not be helpful? 16 useful to know -- why isit not useful to know how much
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 17 thevarious components of aschool costsin that
18 THE WITNESS: It's been my experience that 18 context?
19 finance models are not helpful for parents to get agood 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Lacks
20 educetion for their children. 20 foundation.
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddoyou haveanexplanation | 21 MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
22 for that, why that is s0? 22 evidence. Assumesthat'swhat the Hanson report isall
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 23 about. The Hanson report speaks for itself.
24 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible
25 THE WITNESS: | have no expertise. My opinion 25 opinion.
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1 THE WITNESS: | don't think the data as set 1 student and the student that comes to school with little
2 forthin the Hanson report is useful in that respect. 2 prior background. Set the standards where you would
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhyisthat? 3 sendyour child or your grandchild. Make sureto cover
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 4  the various requirements commonly accepted by social
5 THE WITNESS: That's my opinion. 5 policy or law.
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Nobassforit? 6 Those are your words, correct?
7 A. It'sbeen my experience that complicated 7 A.  Yestheyare
8 financia information, as the type found in the Hanson 8 Q. Anddoyou bdlievethat -- do you still believe
9 Committee report, is not helpful to parents or, indeed, 9 thosewordsto be -- isthat still your opinion?
10 toamost anyonewho isnot -- does not wish to get 10 A. Yes
11 deeply involved in the arcane notion of schoal finance. 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Callsfor
12 Q. Soback tothe proposition set forth in the 12 speculation. Incomplete hypothetical.
13 earlier pages of thisthat we discussed, the paragraph 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible
14 intheintroduction, lack of meaningful accountability. 14 opinion.
15 It sounds like you really do agree with the 15 THE WITNESS: Asit relates to the development
16 sentence, it's very difficult for consumers and 16 of aschool finance policy for astate, yes.
17 taxpayersto get straight answers about what is going on 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. And hasthat been done?
18 financidly with schools. 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 19 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "that."
20 Heanswered that question twice, and the answer was no. 20 Overbroad.
21 MR. SEFERIAN: Argumentative. Misstatesthe 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
22 witness testimony. 22 hypothetical question.
23 THE WITNESS: The question? 23 THE WITNESS: Somewhat.
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How do you reconcile your last 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "somewhat," what do you
25 answer with your answers to that question about that 25 mean?
Page 274 Page 276
1 sentence, about the difficulty of obtaining information 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
2 about school finance? 2 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion.
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 3 THE WITNESS: Thereare avariety of activities
4 evidence. It assumesthey need to bereconciled. Calls 4 that have addressed some of the concernsthat arein
5 for speculation and argumentative. 5 this statement.
6 THE WITNESS: | don't understand the question. 6 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Butthereisno demonstration
7 MR. JACOBS: That's helpful. 7 of what it would take to attract the level of quality of
8 Q. Youre, infact, the person who said the 8 personnd, costs of facilities, transportation and the
9 portioninitaicson page 6 of 7 of fund.html, are you 9 like, correct?
10 not? 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
11 MR. VIRJEE: Back to the Hanson page? 11 Lacksfoundation.
12 MR. JACOBS:. Yes. 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an
13 MR. VIRJEE: Thank you. He'sasking did you 13 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto
14 saythat, if you recall. 14 "personnel," "costs of facilities' and "transportation.”
15 THEWITNESS: Yes, | did. 15 MR. JORDAN: And it's compound.
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andjustto beclesr, it says, 16 THEWITNESS: To my knowledge, the activities
17 demonstrate whet it would take to attract the level of 17 and model development suggested by that statement have
18 quality of personndl, teachers, custodians, school 18 not been done.
19 secretaries, administrators, cost of facilities, 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andwhat isyour opinion asto
20 transportation and the like. Set your standards for 20 the effect of the absence of such amodel on the
21 what you would like to see for your own children. Visit 21 development of schoal finance policy for the state of
22 the 10 or 20 best private and public schoolsin 22 Cdifornia?
23 Cdiforniaor the United States. Find out what it takes 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
24 to educate not only the typical student in the typica 24 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto effect of
25 schoal, but aso the serioudy emotionally disturbed 25 thelack of amodel. Callsfor an expert opinion.
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THE WITNESS: My opinion isthat we've done
quite well without it.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "quitewell," what do
you mean?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cadllsfor an
inadmissible opinion. Overly broad.

THE WITNESS: Distribution of resourcesto the
public schools from the date of this statement to now is
up about 80 percent.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sowasit your judgment that
the -- let me rewind a couple questions.

Why would it be -- in 1997 why did you think it
would be useful to have such amodel for the development
of such school finance policy?

MR. VIRJEE: By "such modd," you're referring
to hisfirst sentence, correct?

MR. JACOBS: Correct.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "such model."

MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

THE WITNESS: There are many models of
developing school finance. Thisisone. | thought it
was agood ideathen from aresearch and andytical
perspective. | think it's still an interesting model,
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the entire paragraph and the first sentence, sir?

MR. VIRJEE: Sincethey cover different topics
and different sections, different issues, there would be
adifference.

MR. JACOBS: That was coaching.

THE WITNESS: What do you mean by "the modd"?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What do you mean, Sir?

A.  Thequestion from the commission was how much
money is enough. Thereisno analytical answer to that
guestion in arepublic that is answered through the
politica process. The question becomes what ways do
you want to look at funding to seeif you're heading in
theright direction in that context. Thisisoneway.
There are many other ways.

Q. And give meafor instance of another way.

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor an inadmissible apinion.

MR. VIRJEE: Just for clarification, “this," |
don't know what he was referring to either, whether it's
the first sentence or the entire document.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: The sentence preceding the
italicized comments says, but at least one witness urged
the Little Hoover Commission to undertake the task. He
said models should be developed for atypical elementary
school and atypical high schoal.
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but it's not essential to sound schooal finance policy.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andit's not essentia to sound
schooal finance policy because there are substitutes for
the modd?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous as
to "substitutes.”

THE WITNESS: As| understand your question, my
opinion isthere arelots of models of schoal finance.
Thisissimply one.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Sointhe absence of the modedl
on -- that we've been talking about on page 6 or 7, what
are the other models of school finance that play an
equally effective role in setting state school finance
policy?

MR. VIRJEE: And by the model on page 6 of 7,
you have been talking about the first sentence?

MR. JACOBS: Yeah. Why don't wejust cal that
the model on page 6 of 7.

MR. VIRJEE: Becausethere's morethere, sol
just want to make sure. Y ou originally asked him about
the entireitalicized piece, and then you've asked him
about thefirst sentence, so | want to make sure that he
understands what you mean by "the modd."

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you see adifference between
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That witness is you, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.

If you're asking if he made this statement, that's been
asked and answered.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou said that models should
be developed, correct?

A.  Correct.

Q. Andtheitaicized description is adescription

of how you would develop that model; isn't that correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumes there would be only one way.

THE WITNESS: That'sagenerd, smplistic
statement about how to develop one model of how to look
at how much money you should spend on public schoals.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andcouldwegiveitalabd
that you're comfortable with, to that model ?

A. Ildontknow. I'venever givenitalabel.
Q. Youretheonewhourgedit. Didyou put a
nameon it a the time, sir?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence.

THEWITNESS: | don' think so. I've never had
aname for it.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Socanwecadl it "the mode
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1 vyouurged at the Little Hoover Commission™? 1 Q BY MR.JACOBS:. What'syour test of fairness?
2 A.  Sure 2 When you said fair, what did you mean? Strike that.
3 Q. Okay. Intheabsence of the modd you urged at 3 Startover.
4 theLittle Hoover Commission, sir, what mode! for school 4 When you said fair, what did you mean?
5 finance would you point to as serving the same 5 MR. VIRJEE: That's an incomplete statement of
6 objectives for which you urged thismodd at the Little 6 histestimony. I'll object on that grounds. He didn't
7 Hoover Commission? 7 just sayfair.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
9 to"modd," and aso assumes that the two issues would 9 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion.
10 be mutualy exclusive since he stated part of these 10 THEWITNESS: Fair isdlocating resourcesin
11 things were covered and some parts werent. 11 the manner that produces the best academic results for
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an 12 studentswithin a state as big as California.
13 inadmissible opinion. 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Can we take a bresk?
14 THE WITNESS: That's such a vague question. 14 MR. JACOBS:. Sure.
15 Thereare-- | can't give you any particular models. 15 (Recesstaken.)
16 There are modes like opinions of the superintendent of 16 MR. JACOBS:. Okay. Let meask you about a
17 publicinstruction, priorities of the legidature, views 17 recent article from the Orange County Register. This
18 of loca educators, economic models of overtime 18 will be 246.
19 earnings, submodels of various costing out of 19 (Exhibit SAD-246 was marked.)
20 circumstances. Therearejust lots of ways economically 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisanarticle entitled
21 and within policy to make ajudgment about distribution 21 Davis budget fundstwo O.C. projects, spending: His
22 mechanismsfor public schools. It's done all thetime. 22 cdl for more school funding leaves educators wondering
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andin your judgment those 23 about previous plans for cuts.
24 other mechanisms, either in part or taken asawhole, 24 And a the bottom of the article on the first
25 areequally useful to the model you urged at the Little 25 page of this January 10, 2002 article from the Orange
Page 282 Page 284
1 Hoover Commission? 1 County Regigter it states, John Mockler, executive
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 2 director for the State Board of Education, said Davis
3 Lacksfoundation. Assumesfactsnotin evidence. Also 3 shouldn't be blamed if local school district managers
4 vagueastotime. 4 decideto make deep cuts.
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible 5 Isthat an accurate reflection of the comments
6 opinion. 6 toareporter?
7 THE WITNESS: Y ou're asking for my opinion on 7 A. No.
8 that? I think we've done pretty well without the modl. 8 Q. Doyourecdl what you said?
9 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andhow doyoujudge--andthe | 9 MR. VIRJEE: To this particular reporter?
10 reason you think that is because schooal finance has 10 MR. JACOBS:. Yes.
11 increased by 80 percent over some period of time that 11 THE WITNESS: In generd, yes.
12 youidentified, correct? 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. What did you say?
13 MR. JORDAN: Asked and answered. 13 A. Question, our districts are diminating
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 14 science, diminating vocationa programs, diminating
15 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Incomplete and 15 nursesand blaming it on your budget. | said, the cuts
16 improper hypothetical question. 16 inthegenerd program of the school district, not
17 THE WITNESS: Because | think the judgments and 17 including categorical aids, amounted to one-third of
18 other analysis have produced a distribution system that 18 1 percent inthe current year, and that if cuts were
19 issubgtantially fairer than it had in the past. 19 beyond that in the current or budget year, that would
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And"fairer" measured bywhat? | 20 not be because of the budget.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 Q. |takeitthe emphasisthere was-- to try and
22 to"measured by what." | think also asked and answered 22 make sense of this paraphrasing, the emphasis on deep --
23 totheextent hejust answered the question. 23 you would place the emphasis on deep; is that correct?
24 THE WITNESS: Asmeasured by how we distribute 24 Y ou were saying that the governor's budget is
25 fundsto schools. 25 not making deep adjustments, and if the school district
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is making deep adjustments or deep cuts, you can't
attribute that to the statewide budget changes?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates his
testimony to the extent you're trying to paraphrase what
he told you he told the reporter. The question is asked
and answered.

THEWITNESS: | said the cuts were about
one-third of 1 percent of the genera program budget,
and if cuts were made in the general budget in excess of
one-third, those cuts were not a function of the
governor's budget. | did not mention blaming or not
blaming.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let meask you about classsize
reduction. And let's go back into history here with an
article -- thiswill be 247 -- from February 29th, 1988,

the Orange County Register.

PBoo~w~ounswneR

T &
oM WN

Page 287

whispering to the witness in the middle of questioning.
MR. VIRJEE: There's no question pending.
MR. JACOBS: Wherether€'s privilegeissue.
MR. VIRJEE: There's no question pending.
MR. JACOBS: Appalling deposition conduct.

Q. Couldl ask you toturn, please, to page 183,

sir. It'sthe second page of the handout Exhibit 247.
Inthe middle of the pageit refersto you

making estimates of the costs of bringing class size

downto 20. Do you seethat?

A. ldo.

Q. My question to you to begin with is, what

involvement have you had in class size reduction

initiatives over the -- over your educational career?
MR. VIRJEE: Would you rephrase -- reread the

guestion.

17 (Exhibit SAD-247 was marked.) 17 (Record read.)
18 MR. JACOBS:. Excuseme. Excuse me. 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
19 MR. VIRJEE: Youhaveaproblem? | cantdk to 19 to"involvement" and "class size reduction initiatives."
20 himanytime | want to. 20 THE WITNESS: Oh, Lord, | can't remember them
21 MR. JACOBS: | don't think you can. 21 dl. It'sasubject that comes up al thetime over the
22 MR. VIRJEE: Wdl, | am, right now. 22 35yearsor so I've been involved for lesser or greater
23 MR. JACOBS: We're going to suspend the 23 extents.
24  deposition. Get out of here. 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Arethereany particular
25 MR. VIRJEE: Get out of here yourself. 25 instances of involvement in your career that you would
Page 286 Page 288
1 MR. JACOBS: We're suspending the deposition. 1 characterize as substantial or deep?
2 Gooutside. I'mcaling-- 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Areyou referring to a specific
3 MR. VIRJEE: That's outrageous. 3 classsizereduction program or --
4 MR. JACOBS: Y ou can't just consult with the 4 MR. JACOBS: | think the question is absolutely
5 witnessin the middle of questioning. 5 clear. If youwant to state an objection, quote, vague
6 MR. VIRJEE: Make your objections. Go ahead 6 and ambiguous, you may do so.
7 and movethe court. Do whatever you want. | cantalk 7 MR. SEFERIAN: I'll object to the question,
8 to himwhenever | want. 8 vague and ambiguous asto class size reduction.
9 MR. JACOBS:. Areyou going to talk to him again 9 MR. JACOBS: Thewords are vague and ambiguous,
10 inthe middle of the deposition? 10 period, not asto anything.
11 MR. VIRJEE: That'sridiculous. 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
12 MR. JACOBS: Thatisridiculous. I've never 12 toclasssizereduction.
13  heard of such an absurd proposition. 13 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Sir?
14 MR. VIRJEE: Thentestit. 14 A.  Asl understand your question, have | been
15 MR. JACOBS: Let's suspend, please. 15 involved in discussions about class size reduction, the
16 MR. VIRJEE: No. I'msitting right here. 16 answer isyes.
17 Therésnoreason | can't tak to him. Therésno 17 Q. Myquestioniswerethere any particular
18 question pending or anything. 18 involvementsthat you would characterize as substantial
19 MR. JACOBS: I'm going to do this on a break. 19 or deep?
20 | find that absolutely intolerable, and I'm going to put 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 it ontherecord and were going to send in this 21 to"substantial or deep."
22 transcript and helll see the kinds of objections that 22 THEWITNESS: No.
23 have been made. 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And thisparticular estimate
24 MR. VIRJEE: Go ahead. 24 that you made here, according to this article, were you
25 MR. JACOBS: And that you've acknowledged 25 involved in some particular discussions about class size
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1 reduction at the time outside of the article that you 1 THE WITNESS: What do you mean by "advocacy''?
2 Dbased thison? 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'sgoback. Inthat period
3 A, Wow. Thisis1998? 3 youwereinyour strategic consulting firm, correct?
4 Q. 1988. 4 A. Yes
5 A. 1988. Notinthat year, no. That'saProp 98 5 Q. Andyouwererepresenting clientson
6 year, | think. Thisisadiscussion about Prop 98. 6 educational issues among other things?
7 Q. And, sir, haveyou generaly had a concern over 7 A Yes
8 your career about the costs of class size reduction 8 Q. Didyoudoany representations --
9 properly implemented? 9 A, Yes
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Lacks foundation. 10 Q. -- in which you made -- and | want to exclude
11 Cadlsfor speculation. And vague and ambiguous as to 11 whereyou simply served as sort of aconsultant
12 “concern." 12 interndlyto aclient. By advocacy positions | mean
13 THE WITNESS: No. 13 expressing aview to people outside the client about
14 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Wereyou concerned in 1988 that 14 classsizereduction.
15 it would be costly to implement class size reduction? 15 A. Yes
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 16 Q. Whatrolesdidyou -- what did you doin that
17 to"costly" and "concerned."” 17 capacity?
18 THE WITNESS: No. 18 A. |cantrecdl themadl. | represented severa
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Whenyou say, "no," isthat 19 interestsregarding legidlation and its effect and costs
20 because you thought that it was not costly or -- why do 20 invarious circumstances, both the reimbursement rates
21 yousay "no?' Why were you not concerned about cost of 21 and the ability to implement.
22 classsizereduction? 22 Q. WasLAUSD one of those clients?
23 A.  I'mnot concerned about class size because 23 A. Yes
24 classsizecostsacertain thing. That's just afactual 24 Q. Didyoutake positions on behaf of LAUSD about
25 matter. 25 the-- about the costs of class size reduction?
Page 290 Page 292
1 Q. Soyouweremerely -- just the facts, maam, 1 A Yes
2 that'swhat you were reporting at the time, not a 2 Q. Andwhat did you -- in agenerd sense, what
3 concern about those facts? 3 didyou urge on behdf of LAUSD?
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 A. Thatthefull costs of class size reduction,
5 to"reporting." 5 including facilities costs, be appropriated commensurate
6 THE WITNESS: | have no idea about what this -- 6 with the reductions sought.
7 1 don't recal this particular instance. Classsize 7 Q. Anddidyou assesson behaf of LAUSD what
8 reduction costs change every year. We calculate them 8 that -- what those costs were?
9 dl thetime. Wetalk about those costs, we talk 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
10 about -- so I've talked about those costs many times, 10 Vagueastotime.
11 and they change dl the time depending on where we were 11 THE WITNESS: We estimated costs, yes.
12 inhistory. 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Didyou egimatethemona
13 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Didyouhaveanyinvolvementin | 13 statewide basisor in particular for LAUSD, or both?
14 theparticular class size reduction initiative that was 14 A. Both.
15 underway in the mid '90s and continues to the present? 15 Q. Do you recall, first of al, what the basic
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 16 components of your estimates werein terms of what the
17 asto"involvement." 17 cost components were?
18 THE WITNESS: | was aware of legidation to 18 A. Ingenerd.
19 propose class size reduction in the mid '90s. 19 Q. Wha werethey?
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did you take any advocacy 20 A. It'samath problem. Salaries on average on
21 position with respect to that legidation? 21 margin compared to the number of teachers you'd need,
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 that you didn't have now, to reach a particular goal.
23 to"advocacy." 23 Asto program codts, it's apretty smple adgebra
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 24 equation. And then the costs of classroom space for
25 for privileged communications. 25 those students.
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1 Q. Didyou estimate that latter component? 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
2 A, Yes 2 Vague and ambiguous as to "conclusion.”
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor aninadmissible
4  to"estimate" and "latter component.” 4 opinion.
5 THEWITNESS: Yes. 5 THE WITNESS: I'm not certain we made a
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do yourecdl what the estimate 6 concluson. We simply informed the legidature of the
7 was? ‘ 7 costs of the implementation phase and our best estimate
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor an 8 of the cost of facilities. Some of those resolved
9 inadmissible opinion. 9 and-- as| recdl, some were resolved and some were
10 THE WITNESS: | don't recdll particularly what 10 nat.
11 that was. 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. And by "resolved," you mean
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inagenera sensedo you 12 what?
13 recall the magnitude of the estimate? 13 A.  Theunit rates were increased to reflect
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 average costs.
15 to"magnitude." 15 Q. Averagecods?
16 THEWITNESS: It was quite high. | don't 16 A.  Perprogram.
17 recall the exact numbers, but very high. 17 Q.  Asyouwere advocating on the average cost
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Highintherange of billions? 18 that -- you were advocating on behdf of LAUSD?
19 A. Oh,yes 19 A, Yes
20 Q. Anddidyoutrack thelegidation asit was 20 Q.  Andwhenyou say average costs for LAUSD, did
21 enacted and funds appropriated for class size reduction 21 you have a LAUSD-specific estimate as opposed to a
22 and compare that to what you had estimated the costs of 22 datewide-average estimate?
23 classsizereduction to be? 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
24 A.  Yes 24 and assumesthat they're mutualy exclusive.
25 Q. Andwhat did that comparison show? 25 THE WITNESS: | don' recal how specific we
Page 294 Page 296
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 1 gotinthat, yes. Webasicdly used the centrd salary
2 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. 2 sructure, if youlook at it. | don't recall how much
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 3 detail wewent into that.
4 And to the extent you're asking what a document said, 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By central sdary structure,
5 the document speaks for itsalf. 5 you mean LAUSD structures?
6 THE WITNESS: | can't recall specificaly, but 6 A. Statewideand LA. Welooked at many districts,
7 at different pointsin the process the reimbursement 7 but | can't remember exactly what we produced in
8 rates proposed were insufficient to cover the costs. 8 documentation.
9 Thosg, a severa points, were adjusted based upon that 9 Q. Now,yousadsome of themwereresolved. |
10 daa 10 takeit that some were not resolved; is that correct?
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddidyou bresak it down asto 11 A. |think that's accurate.
12 whether they were sufficient to cover the teacher 12 Q. Soastheprogram actudly rolled out, did you
13 component as against the -- on the one hand, and the 13 conduct acomparison of thefinal product as against
14 facilities component on the other? 14 your estimates of cost?
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
16 THE WITNESS: Y eah, in someform. They were 16 to"conduct acomparison."
17 separate cdculations. 17 THE WITNESS: | recall doing some work on thét,
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou reach separate 18 yes. Andtherewasagap initialy, and then later that
19 conclusions on the comparison of your estimate of costs 19 was made up on the program side.
20 asagainst what was being proposed asthelegidation 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By "program," that's as opposed
21 proceeded through the legidature? 21 to?
22 A.  Withrespect to what? 22 A. Cost of teachers.
23 Q. Thosetwo components, teachers and facilities. 23 Q. Andhow about on the facilities side?
24 A, Yes 24 A.  Myrecollection, it was never fully resolved.
25 Q. Andwhat wasyour conclusion? 25 Q. Andthe magnitude of the gap, do you have any

17 (Pages 293 to 296)




Page 297

Page 299

1 recollection of figures that you came up with 1 clients.
2 specificdly or generaly? 2 MR. JACOBS: Just to be clear, I'm only asking
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 3 therepresentationa question now, not what you urged on
4 Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. 4 behdlf of clients.
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 THE WITNESS: | don't think so, but | might
6 to"gap" and "magnitude.” 6 havebeen. I'mtrying torecdl thetime.
7 THE WITNESS: | don't think the facilities gap 7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Your answer sofar about what
8 wasever fully resolved. 8 you were arguing were made with reference to advocacy on
9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthe magnitude of the gap, 9 behaf of LAUSD; isthat correct?
10 do you have a sense of the magnitude of the gap today? 10 A.  Primary advocacy issue asfar as advocacy.
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 11 Q. Whattime period have you been referring toin
12 Cdlisfor aninadmissible opinion. It's anincomplete 12 your testimony?
13 and improper hypothetical question. 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14  evidence.
15 to "magnitude of the gap." 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
16 THE WITNESS: No, | don't know today what the 16 "testimony."
17 gapis. | recal it beinglarge. It may ill be 17 THE WITNESS: My understanding of your
18 large. 18 questionswith respect to class size reduction are that
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andby"large" you meaninthe 19 they involved Governor Wilson'sinitiative or
20 hillions? 20 recapturing theinitiative by Jack O'Conndll, and |
21 A. Yes 21 don't recall the exact dete. | think it's 1996.
22 Q. Didyouargueon behaf of LAUSD that under the 22 Something likethat. | don't know. Inthat time, 1995.
23 circumstance where the estimates of costs were not fully 23 | don't know.
24  addressed by the legidature, therewould be a 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Mid'90s?
25 differentia ability of school districts to effectively 25 A, Mid'90s.
Page 298 Page 300
1 implement class size reduction? 1 Q. Didyoumake-- advance any arguments about the
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 2 impact of class size reduction on the distribution of
3 THE WITNESS: | vaguely recall that, yes, | 3 credentiaed teachersin schools around the state during
4 think so. 4 thisperiod?
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou make any argumentson 5 A. Probably.
6 behaf of LAUSD that from the standpoint of fairness or 6 Q. Andwhat doyourecal?
7 equity, that thiswould be a-- that thiswould not be a 7 A. Thatthedistribution of teachers under class
8 positive outcome of agap in funding? 8 sizereduction, absent asupply increase, would be
9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 9 maldistributed to the possessed and away from the
10 to"positive outcome,” "fairness' and "equity." Also 10 dispossessed.
11 vagueastotime. 11 Q. Andby "the dispossessed," what do you mean?
12 THE WITNESS: Asl recdl, the rlative ability 12 A. | mean people, students of greater need
13 toimplement class size reduction was talked about a 13 socioeconomically.
14 lot. | don't recall the specifics, but clearly thereis 14 Q. Wereyouadvancing at the time a specific
15 adifferentiad amount. 15 recommendation about how to address the supply issuein
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: A differentid ability? 16 that equation?
17 A. Differentid ability. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 Q. Anddidyou makethe-- weve characterized in 18 to"recommendation” and "supply."
19 thelast few minutes the arguments you made on behalf of 19 THE WITNESS: | don't recall any specifics, but
20 LAUSD. 20 wetalked alot about supply issuesin those times,
21 Were you representing any other clients a the 21 sure
22 timeon class size reduction issues? 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you say you "talked alot
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 23 about," you're referring to discussions you had with
24 to whether or not he was making those arguments on 24  legidative staff, for example?

N
o1

behalf of other clients or smply representing other

25

A. Y es, and district staff and others.

18 (Pages 297 to 300)



PEBoo~w~ooswNE

NRNNNNRNNRE R R R R R
ORWONRPROOONOUDWN

Page 301

Q. Anddiscussions with legidators themselves?
A. Ithink so.

Q.  Andwith executive branch officials?

A.  Yes

Q.

Did the -- at the time did you compare the
output of the class size reduction program in terms of
teacher supply and what you were urging about what
needed to be done on teacher supply?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to output of class size reduction for teachers.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Youwereurging that stepsbe
taken specifically or generdly to address teacher

supply issues so that the maldistribution that you

referred to wouldn't occur, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his
testimony. He didn't say anything about urging any
specific anything.

THE WITNESS: There were alarge number of
discussions, | can't remember them specificaly, with
respect to the ability to attract and retain teachers
within the class size reduction issue, and I've talked
about that alot. | can't give you any specificsthat |
recall.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddidyou -- did your
advocacy go beyond saying thisiswhat is going to
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MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

MR. JORDAN: Could | have the question read
back.

(Record read.)

THE WITNESS: The most truthful answer | can
giveyou is probably.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And probably meaning that as
you put yourself -- sitting here today, you think that's
something you did as opposed to having a recollection of
doing it?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS. We did no empirical research on
the outcome issue, we asserted a condition and asked
that that be resolved and there was some motion.
Whether it was sufficient or not was subject to debate.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And did you take a position in
that debate?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
evidence. Assumes there was a debate. Also vague and
ambiguous as to "position.”

THE WITNESS:. As| understand the Los Angeles
position, we advocated any activity that could assist us
in increasing the supply of teachers.
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happen unless supply issues are addressed, did it go
beyond that to we really need to address supply issues
if we are going to implement class size reduction?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.

MR. VIRJEE: Also calsfor speculation and
compound.

THE WITNESS: | don't recdll the specifics of
the advocacy. We were aware of the problem of
attraction and retention of teachersin general, and
when you need more teachers, the attraction/retention
issue simply gets magnified. And there were alot of
discussions, | can't remember anything in particular,
about various things on what to do with that.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And thinking back to how you
compared the output on the funding side with your
estimates of costs, I'm now asking you whether you drew
asimilar comparison in terms of the output of the
legidature process on the teacher supply issue as
against your concern that there might be a
maldistribution of teachers if supply issues were not
addressed? Did you draw that comparison at the time and
comment on it?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Convoluted.
V ague and ambiguous as to output of supply of teachers
on thelegidative side.
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Q. BY MR JACOBS: Whenyou say "any activity,"
you mean to say no specific activity or -- what do you
mean by "any activity''?

A. | meantherewerearange of activities, and |
can't recall each specific. That was seven years ago.

Q. Do you recall whether the combination of what
was done was, in your judgment, sufficient to meet the
needs for teachers that were being created by the class
size reduction program?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to teachers created by the class size reduction program.
Also calls for speculation. Vague and ambiguous asto
"what was done" and "sufficient.”

MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

THE WITNESS: Would you read it back.

(Record read.)
MR. SEFERIAN: Also object, vague asto time.
THEWITNESS: Y eah.
Q. BY MR JACOBS: Yeswhat?
(Record read.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Soyesmeansyou recal what
you concluded at the time?
A. Yes
Q.  What wasyour conclusion?
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.
2 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. 2 THE WITNESS: We took the position on facility
3 THE WITNESS: | can't give you a specific 3 density, wetook the position on -- which was partidly
4 responseto that, but our -- my position was that the 4 resolved. Wetook a position on the amount of money,
5 problem was not fully addressed. 5 the unit rates, which was subsequently partialy
6 Q BY MR JACOBS: Anddidyouinanycapacity | 6 resolved. Wetook a position on use of portables, alot
7 monitor the impact of class Sze reduction on -- I'm 7 of opinions. | don't remember any more of them, but
8 sorry, what was the word you used to describe the 8 therewereanumber. Therewerelots of them.
9 disparate impact on possessed and dispossessed? It 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou convey any specific
10 wasn't disparate, it was some other word that you used. | 10 information in your capacity as a representative of
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 11 LAUSD to anyonein state government about what was
12 Vagueand ambiguous. | don't think he'sused thewords | 12 actualy happening in terms of the distributional
13 "disparateimpact.” 13 effects of class size reduction?
14 MR. JORDAN: Describetheimpact of classsize | 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
15 reduction and the distribution of teachers? 15 Vague and ambiguous as to "distributiona effects of
16 MR. JACOBS: Madistribution. 16 classsizereduction."
17 Q. Wasmddistribution the word you used, sir? 17 THE WITNESS: Probably. | don't recall
18 A. lcantrecal. 18 gpecifically doing that.
19 Q. |Let'strythat. Doyourecal -- didyou 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou aware of any datain
20 observe any madistributional effects as the classsize 20 thelast severa yearsthat bears on the question -- by
21 reduction program came into effect? 21 last severd years, let's say, 2000 to the present --
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation 22 that bears on the question whether the class size
23 astoacausd effect. Vague and ambiguous asto 23 reduction asimplemented in the state of California had
24 mddigribution. Alsovague astotime. 24 adifferential impact on the distribution of trained
25 THE WITNESS: No. 25 teachers as between the possessed and dispossessed?
Page 306 Page 308
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou-- asthe program 2 Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
3 rolled out, did you, on behalf of the LAUSD, raise any 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible
4  redflagsthat there were, in fact, madistributional 4 opinion.
5 effects? 5 THE WITNESS: | recall seeing several reports
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 6 that suggest that that occurred. | can't give you the
7 to"maldistributional effects." Also callsfor 7 specific references, but, yes.
8 speculation asto acause and effect, and lacks 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andinyour opinion, hasthe
9 foundation. 9 implementation of class size reduction in the state of
10 THE WITNESS: Red flags? 10 Cdifornialed to those effects?
11 MR. JACOBS: Warnings. Something aong the 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
12 lines of wetold you this was going to happen, and now 12 to"thoseeffects” Callsfor speculation asto acause
13 at LAUSD we seethis happening, thisis an urgent 13 and effect. Lacks foundation. Callsfor an expert
14 problem that needs to be addressed. 14 opinion. Vagueastotime.
15 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 15 THE WITNESS: | think it's been very positive
16 THE WITNESS: Wetook aseries of positions 16 overdl. | think it's been positive in those terms,
17 that suggested that the difficulty in the attraction and 17 possessed and dispossessed. | think theissue of
18 retention of teacher for the class size reduction had 18 attraction/retention of teachers remains.
19 not been resolved. 19 MR. JACOBS: Let me ask you about an article
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyouretaking about a 20 that quotesyou about LAUSD in conjunction with class
21 seriesof positions after the class size reduction 21 sizereduction. Thisisan article from the Caifornia
22 legidation was enacted? 22 Journal dated June 1st, 1997, and thiswill be 248.
23 A, Yes 23 (Exhibit SAD-248 was marked.)
24 Q. Doyourecdl the positions you took? 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: If you couldtake-- if you
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vagueastotime. 25 could scanthe article generdly. I'm going to ask you
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1 about the comments on, upper right-hand corner page 27, 1 factsnotinevidence. Assumesthey were seeking a
2 thethird page of the exhibit. 2 particular amount.
3 A 27? 3 THE WITNESS: | think what they were seeking
4 Q. Yes. Doyou seethat onthe upper right-hand 4 wasalot. They had no particular thought. They
5 corner? 5 informed us that an amount in the neighborhood of $300
6 A. Yeah Yeah 6 million would aleviate the most serious density issues.
7 Q. Do you seg, in the giant Los Angeles Unified 7 They ended up receiving about $650 million.
8 Schoal District, said LAUSD lobbyist John Mockler,they | 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did you regard that at thetime
9 have 100 schools that are so overutilized, it's just 9 ashaving accomplished the objective of obtaining
10 impossibleto bring in any more classroom space. 10 specia funding to relieve overcrowding in dense school
11 Do you see that? 11 situations?
12 A.  Yes 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
13 Q. Do you recal having held that view at the 13 evidence. Assumesthat was hisobjective. Also
14 time? 14 overbroad to the extent you're asking beyond LA Unified.
15 A. | recall making that statement, yes, similar. 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Calsfor an
16 Q. In substance is that a correct quotation? 16 inadmissible opinion.
17 A.  Yes 17 THEWITNESS: | regarded it as amajor solution
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 18 todensityissuesin Los Angeles.
19 Areyou asking is the substance correct, or isthat a 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any information on
20 correct recitation of what he said? 20 whether that allocation of funds, in fact, dleviated
21 MR. JACOBS: | think it's clear. 21 thedendity issue that you were seeking to aleviate by
2 Q. Mr. Mockler, what else do you recal telling 22 asking for those funds?
23 thereporter about the situation at LAUSD? 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin 24 astoacauseand effect. Lacksfoundation. Calsfor
25 evidence. Assumes hetold the reporter this or anything 25 an expert opinion. Also vague asto time.
Page 310 Page 312
1 dse 1 THE WITNESS: In my role as executive director
2 THE WITNESS: | actualy don't recall talking 2 tothe State Board of Education, the State Board must
3 tothisreporter, but the substance of that remark is 3 review the implementation of the use of those funds. As
4 something that I've said many times. 4 | recall, the districts -- district has not expended
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What wereyou urging, if 5 those funds as they had promised in that year, and that
6 anything, asaresult of the facts that you were 6 asubstantial portion of those funds are yet to have
7 asserting? 7 been spent.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Anddo you haveany
9 toyour "urging" and to whom hewas urging. If that's 9 understanding of why that is s0?
10 supposed to be areference asto what he was urging to 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
11 thereporter, it'sunclear. 11 Lacksfoundation. Alsovagueastotime.
12 THE WITNESS: We urged the legidature and the 12 THE WITNESS: Lack of management and poalitical
13 governor to provide specia facilities assistance to 13 priority.
14 schoal districts that had dense sites as defined by 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: InLAUSD?
15 number of students per acre. 15 A. InLAUSD.
16 They responded to that urging, and ultimately 16 Q. Andwhatisthebasisfor that judgment?
17 produced about $680 million set aside for essentially 17 A.  They asked for more than half abillion
18 LosAngeesUnified School Digtrict to overcome that 18 dollars. They received more than half abillion
19 condition. 19 dollars. The commitment was within aperiod of timeto
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou have an estimate of -- 20 relieve density problemsin schools that had these.
21 srikethat. 21 Progresswithin the first three or four years of that is
22 What was LAUSD seeking in terms of adollar 22 not acceptable.
23 amount at the time? 23 Q. Letmeaskyoutotakealook at the draft
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 minutes of the December 5, 6, 2001.
25 to"seeking." Also callsfor speculation and assumes 25 (Exhibit SAD-249 was marked.)
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1 Q BY MR. JACOBS. Weve marked as 249 draft 1 My first question is -- and you can break it

2 minutes of the State of California Board of Education 2 downif youd like, but to moveit aong, I'll ask you

3 meeting December 5, 6, 2001, and | want to ask you first 3 intotal, does that accurately reflect the substance of

4 about option 1, class size reduction. 4 your comments on this issue at the Board meeting?

5 MR. VIRJEE: Did you refer to a specific page? 5 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou're asking whether that whole

6 MR. JACOBS: I'msorry. It'sitem W-4. It's 6 paragraph does?

7 on page 28, lower right-hand corner. 7 MR. JACOBS: Yes.

8 MR. VIRJEE: Thank you. 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.

9 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. Thisitem W-4 isarequest by 9 THE WITNESS: Reasonably.

10 Los Angeles Unified School District for waiver renewal 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And doesit reflect the tenor
11 under Ed Code Section 52122(b)(2)(A) and 52123(c) for 11 of your commentsin terms of -- the tenor of your
12 alowing school sites with 200 or more students per acre 12 comments?
13 toreceive option 1 class size reduction funding. This 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 isthefourth renewad for 77 schools and third renewal 14 to"tenor."
15 for 23 schools. 15 THE WITNESS: What do you mean by "tenor"?
16 Can you explain, first of al, the -- in 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | takeit fromreading this
17 layperson's terms what this waiver request is about? 17 that you were not enthusiastic about the waiver request;
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The document speaks 18 isthat correct?
19 foritself. Thewaiver request speaks for itself. To 19 A. That'snot correct.
20 theextent you're asking what is legally required, that 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 calsfor alega opinion. 21 to"enthusiastic.”
22 THE WITNESS: The funding provided by the 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou -- wereyou
23 legidature requires the district -- allows the district 23 enthusiastic about the waiver request?
24 to have-- option 1 funding is 20 students in -- not 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
25 morethan 20 studentsin aclass K-3. Option 2 funding 25 asto"enthusiastic.”
Page 314 Page 316

1 isif you have partia implementation. So they get full 1 THE WITNESS: No.

2 funding for classroomsin which they have, for example, 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereyou neutrad on the waiver

3 40 kids and two teachersin asingle classroom, whichis 3 request?

4 not alowed in other districts. So students receive the 4 A. No.

5 benefit of teacher/pupil ratio reduction, but not 5 Q. Wha wasyour position on the waiver request?

6 explicitly class size reduction. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin

7 They're alowed to continue that so long as 7 evidence. Assumeshehad aposition. Vague and

8 they make progress towards overcoming the density issues 8 ambiguous asto "position."

9 outlined for which they received the money. 9 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto time.
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Itreferstoyour commentsin 10 THE WITNESS: | had no position on the waiver
11 the second paragraph of that item, Mr. Mockler stated 11 request.

12 that the LAUSD has $600 million set aside for school 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let meask you, asamatter of
13 facilities. Thegoa of classsizereductionin 13 procedureinterna to the SBE, typically would steff of

14 kindergarten through the third gradeisto have 20 14 the Board make a recommendation yea or nay on awaiver
15 studentsin aclassroom with oneteacher. The children 15 likethis?

16 attending the schools covered by thiswaiver are some of 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
17 themost vulnerableinthe state. The law requiresthe 17 to"daff of the Board."

18 didtrict to set its own benchmarks for providing 18 THE WITNESS: If Board members ask our views,
19 facilitiesand to report onits progress. The Board, 19 wetell them our views.

20 when Ms. Lozano was president, was very critical of the 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "view" you mean more
21 didrict'slack of progress. The LAUSD has had three 21 than factua reportage, you mean should we grant this or
22 different sets of benchmarks. Itishard to know what 22 not?

23 progress has been made. The $600 million has not been 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Compound.
24 spent. Thisisavery important matter affecting 24 Cdlsfor speculation.

25 thousands of children. 25 THE WITNESS: Individual Board members, yes.
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1 Q BY MR JACOBS: Didyou get asked your viewson 1 THE WITNESS: | actualy don't recall. |
2 whether this waiver request should be granted? 2 redlydont.
3 MR. VIRJEE: This particular one on December 5, 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inthesecommentsasreported
4 67 Objection. Cdllsfor speculation. Lacks 4 here-- strike that.
5 foundation. 5 In the comments you actually made at the
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls 6 meeting, did you say one or the other, definitively or
7 for privileged communications. 7 not, in my judgment, thiswaiver request should or
8 THE WITNESS: The Board had expressed its 8 should not be granted?
9 frudtration in previous yearswith thiswaiver. My role 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
10 istoexplaintotheboardin public session of its 10 THE WITNESS: | redly dont recall. I'd have
11 previous actions on amatter. 11 toreview therecord.
12 On this matter, since we werein the fifth and 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Review what record?
13 fourth renewd for some schools and the third for 13 A. TheBoadreports. There'satape.
14 others, it was clear that the benchmarks were not being 14 Q. Andtheeffect of not granting the waiver, as
15 met quickly enough. The Board has expressed its view 15 you understand it, would be -- would have been what?
16 that it cares about these students and that when $600 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
17 million of the taxpayers money isset asideina 17 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to "effect."
18 didtrict over afive-year period and it's unable to be 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible legd
19 gpent, that is not acceptable. 19 opinion. Overly broad.
20 MR. VIRJEE: John, answer his question. His 20 THE WITNESS: The district would lose aportion
21 question was, did you make arecommendation. That was 21 of itsclass size reduction funds.
22 hisquestion. Okay? 22 MR. SEFERIAN: We've been going for about an
23 THEWITNESS: | don't recal if | did or not. 23 hour. Canwe take abresk?
24 MR. JACOBS: | don't even think he's your 24 MR. JACOBS: Let medo just acouple moreon
25 lawyer. 25 249, and then welll finish.
Page 318 Page 320
1 MR. VIRJEE: Answer the questions that he asks. 1 Q. Letmeturnyou to on the bottom right-hand
2 THEWITNESS: | don't recall. 2 corner, page 25. It'sthethird page of the exhibit.
3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Youdont recal whether you 3 MR. VIRJEE: I'm sorry, page 257
4 were asked your apinion on this? My question -- he's 4 MR. JACOBS. Yes.
5 right,inasense. 5 Q. AndI'mnot sure whether thisis maybe just a
6 MR. VIRJEE: I'm absolutely right. Y ou didn't 6 drafting issue, but -- oh, | see.
7 answer the question. 7 Do you seethe reference to WC-2 at the top of
8 MR. JACOBS: He'sright in the sense that my 8 the page and retroactive waiver of 60119?
9 question has not been answered. He'snot right in 9 A Yes
10 tryingto stifle your free speechrights. 10 Q.  Andthen Judy Pinegar, waiver office, informed
11 MR. VIRJEE: Please answer the questions that 11 the Board that WC-2 isthefirst waiver before the Board
12 heasks, and don't otherwise give narratives. 12 under its newly-adopted policies on waivers of Education
13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereyou asked your -- let's 13 Code Section 60119. Do you see that?
14 walk thisback alittle bit. It says recommended for 14 MR. VIRJEE: Actualy, it says policy, not
15 approva there. Do you seethat under item W-4? 15 policies.
16 A. |doseethat. 16 THE WITNESS: Yeah.
17 Q. Andisthat arecommendation that came from the 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andthenit says, thiswaiver
18 superintendent? 18 requestisfor fivedistricts. All of the digtricts
19 A, Yes 19 failed to hold the required public hearing on the
20 Q. Andwereyou asked for your views on whether 20 availability of instructional materialsin their
21 thiswaiver request should be approved? 21 digricts. Thedigtricts have since held the required
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 public hearing.
23 to"views." And also objection to the extent that it 23 Do you see that?
24 cdlsfor the deliberative process or officia 24 A,  Yes
25 information privilege or the attorney/client privilege. 25 Q.  Andthenyou commented that the pendty for not
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holding the public hearings was the loss of dl
Schiff-Bustamante instructional materials funds.

Do you seethat?
A. Yes
Q. Isthat anaccurate -- it goesonto say, in
cases where there were technical and inadvertent errors
but the substance of the law was met, legidation was
passed to alow the Board to waive the penalty.
Mr. Mockler commended Ms. Pinegar and the others who
worked to develop the waiver palicy for their excellent
work.

Do you seethat?
A. Yes
Q. Andisthat an accurate summary of your

comments on this topic?
A.  Reasonably.
Q.  Anything strikeyou asyou read it that is

omitted from the comment?
A. No.
MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. My question to you isthat --

what | believe | understood from your testimony was that
under the new policy, in order to grant awaiver, the
guestion was not only whether the hearing had been held
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"availableto the Board."

MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumes there were other issues other than
technicdl failuresto comply.

THE WITNESS: Each waiver request is presented
tothe Board in itstotdlity. Under the policy,
districts must assert avariety of things regarding its
activitiesin order to get the waiver. The Board
members have that information on each of these waivers.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'msorry, maybe my question
wasn't clear. With respect to Cutten Elementary School
District, or if you don't recall specificaly asto
Cutten, any of the schooal districts, what information
was before the Board under item WC-2 that went beyond
the question of technical compliance with the hearing
requirements of Section 60119?

MR. JORDAN: Document speaks for itself.

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor speculation. Vague and ambiguous asto
"beyond." Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: Thewaiver document is presented
tothe Board in its agenda and it contains all of the
assertions contained in the Board's palicy, and that
information is available to the Board members, and for
that matter the public, and that's the information they
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or not, but whether the district was, in fact, meeting
the objectives of 60119, that is, to provide sufficient
textbooks or instructional materials to its students.

MR. JORDAN: Misstates.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Myfirg questiontoyou, is
that what you intended to convey yesterday?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. The policy speaks
for itself. Callsfor alegal opinion.

MR. VIRJEE: And | don't think he's asking the
policy. | do think that misstates histestimony. His
testimony will speak for itsdlf, and it was different
than that.

THE WITNESS: Y eah, we can get a copy of the
policy. Thepolicy, | think, isreflective of that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Reflectiveof what | said, just
sad?

A. | beieveso.

Q. Wasthere moreinformation available to the
Board than is reported in the minutes here about the
actual availability of textbooks in the school districts
that were seeking waiver under item WC-2?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also vague and ambiguous asto "more
information.”

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
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were acting on.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you recal what the
information before the Board said about the -- about
whether, in fact, these districts or any of them were
complying with the requirement under 60119 beyond the
requirement to hold a hearing that they actudly deliver
sufficient textbook or instructional materialsto their
students?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Vagueand
ambiguous. Callsfor speculation. And to the extent
you're asking what the documents say, the documents
speak for themselves.

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. JACOBS: | think it would be agood time
for ashort break.

(Recess taken.)
(Exhibit SAD-250 was marked.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Mr. Mockler, were marking as
Exhibit 250 areport of Little Hoover Commission
entitled to build a better school, dated February 2000,
and you are listed on thisreport, | believe, asan
advisor or as amember of the advisory committee,
looking at page 86.

And just to be clear, the beginning of appendix

B saysthelist reflects titles and affiliations at the
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time the advisory committee met, because by thetime the
report met, you were no longer at Strategic Education
Services, correct?

A.  Correct.

Q.  Andwhat was your -- you were amember of the
Little Hoover Commission school facilities advisory
committee?

A.  Notredly.

Q.  Sowhat do you mean, "not realy'?

A.  Theycdled me and asked meif | would talk to
them onceinawhile. | don't recall ever actualy
meeting with this group on thisissue.

Q. Doyourecal having any input into the
considerations of the Little Hoover Commission that led
to the issuance of this report?

A.  Ifitwas, it was very tangentid.

Q. Didyoureview this report when it was issued?
A. No.

Q. Haveyou ever seen thisreport outside of
deposition preparation?

A. | dontbdieve so.

Q.  InFebruary 2000, what position did you hold?
A.  Was| executive director of the Board by then?
Yeah, | was. | think | was executive director of the
Board by then. Was|? | don't know. | think.
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well move on. My purposein doing this at this stage
is primarily to find out what you might testify to at
trial on the topic of these recommendations.

So with that as background, on 2 little "i"
theré's arecommendation -- thereés afinding and then
on 3 little"i" there's arecommendation, and the
recommendation is about aternative structures for the
building and maintenance of school buildings.

Do you seethat?

A.  Yes

Q.  Andthereport makes afinding that school
districts may not be the best organization to build and
maintain school buildings, do you see that, in some
communities?

A.  Yes

MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking him to read the
entire paragraph, or just to understand that you've read
thetitle?

MR. JACOBS: | think the question is clear.

Q. Y ou see that, correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The question isvague
and ambiguous as to "do you see that," and vague and
ambiguous as to "finding."

| just don't know if you want him to read the
document or not, Michad, that's al.
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February 2000. Y eah.

Q.  Sobythat time you were no longer acting
secretary, as you best recall?

A.  No, | wasn't secretary until, | believe, August
of 2000 -- or 2001.

MR. SEFERIAN: He said secretary.

MR. JACOBS: To the governor.

THE WITNESS: Governor's education secretary,
August 2000 to February 2001. | wasn't secretary at
thistime.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andjust to tie down the tent
flap, aside from the actud report itself, do you recall
any discussion about the recommendations in the report
gpproximately at thetime it wasissued?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
and assumes facts.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: So, for example, if you saw a
newspaper article about the report or some summary of

the report, is that something you recall discussing?

A. | donot recdl that, no.

Q. Ifyoulook at the executive summary of this

report, there are a series of recommendations, and I'm

going to ask you some questions basically about whether
you have an opinion on the recommendations based on work
you've doneto date. And if the answer is no, then
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Why don't you read finding 1
and recommendation 1.

MR. JORDAN: And the document speaks for
itself.

MR. VIRJEE: Read the whole thing, John.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Okay?
A.  Yesh
Q. Myquestionto you is, have you formed an
opinion over the course of your career on whether it
would be beneficia to have alternatives to school
districts as the structure -- the organizationa
structure for building and maintaining schools?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Also incomplete hypothetical.

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inthe second finding and
recommendation there's a finding that the success of the
state school facility program rests on the ability of
schoal districts to manage construction programs, but
the degree of competence varies greatly among districts.

And then there's a recommendation,
recommendation No. 2, the governor and the legidature
should establish an institute to provide leadership on
school facility issues, training for local school staff,
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1 andtechnica assistance, advice and consulting 1 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion?
2 services, and then there's a series of 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
3 subrecommendations about the institute. 3 THEWITNESS: | don't agree.
4 Why don't you read that finding and 4 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Whyisthat?
5 recommendation. 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
6 A. Okay. 6 THEWITNESS: | don't agree that leadership
7 Q. Let metie down another tent flap. On finding 7 issuesaretheissues.
8 1 -- go back to the previous page -- aside from the 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And how about the other
9 recommendation there's a finding that in some 9 components that are included in the recommendation, an
10 communities schoal districts may not be the best 10 indtitute that would be directed toward training,
11 organization to build and maintain school districts. 11 technica assistance, advice and consulting services?
12 Do you see that? 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Vague and
13 A.  Yes 13 ambiguous. Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
14 Q. In the course of your career, have you formed 14 Overbroad. Callsfor an expert opinion.
15 an opinion on a slightly more definitive statement, that 15 THE WITNESS: | don't believeit would be
16 is, whether school districts are the best organization 16 helpful.
17 to build and maintain school buildings? 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhyisthat?
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
19 Lacksfoundation. Compound and overbroad. 19 THEWITNESS: It would be adday inthe
20 THE WITNESS. No. 20 district's responsibility to hire and manage appropriate
21 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Now back to page 3, little "i," 21 saff.
22 finding No. 2, the success of the state's school 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By"dday," what do you mean?
23 facility program rests on the ability of school 23 A. Didrictshave aresponsbility to hire
24  districts to manage construction programs, but the 24 competent people.
25 degree of competence varies greatly among districts. 25 Q. Andtheeffect of cresting thisingtitute on
Page 330 Page 332
1 Have you formed an opinion over the course of 1 that responsibility would be what?
2 your career on whether that finding is true? 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 3 Incomplete and improper hypothetical question. Lacks
4 Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. Incomplete and 4 foundation. Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague
5 improper hypothetical question. 5 astotimeand "ingtitute."
6 MR. VIRJEE: And overbroad. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Also asked and answered.
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 7 THE WITNESS: Thetalent to complete these
8 "manage construction programs.” Vague and ambiguous as 8 tasksisavailable, it's simply amatter of hiring the
9 to "degree of competence." Vague and ambiguous asto 9 right people.
10 "success." 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Unifying state oversight. Why
11 THEWITNESS: Yes. 11 don't you takealook at finding No. 3 and
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion? 12 recommendation No. 3.
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 13 A. Right.
14 THEWITNESS: | agree. 14 MR. VIRJEE: He'sasking you to read the entire
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. AndthenrecommendationNo.2 | 15 text.
16 isasto the establishment of an institute as discussed 16 THE WITNESS: | thought he just said finding
17  inthe recommendation. 17 No.3.
18 Have you formed an opinion on whether the 18 MR. JACOBS: No, | think you need to read the
19 establishment of such an institute would be agood idea? 19 rest of the paragraphstoo.
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 20 THE WITNESS: Oh, and the recommendations?
21 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous 21 MR. JACOBS: Yes, please.
22 asto"inditute’ and "good idea." Overly broad. 22 MR. VIRJEE: Yes.
23 Incomplete and improper hypothetical question. Vague as 23 THE WITNESS: That wasn't the question, but |
24 totime. 24 will.
25 THEWITNESS: Yes. 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Youready?

26 (Pages 329 to 332)




Page 333

Page 335

1 A Yesh 1 incentivesto encourage and assist local schoal
2 Q. Thetext of thefinding itself under unifying 2 didrictsto design, build, operate, maintain and
3 dateoversight is, the State's multiple interestsin 3 renovate buildings to maximize value over the life of
4 sdgfe and efficient school facilities are not optimally 4 thefacilities.
5 served by divided oversight structure. 5 Do you seethat?
6 In the course of your career have you formed an 6 A Yes
7 opinion on whether that statement is true? 7 Q. Haveyouformed an opinion over the course of
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 8 your career on whether that finding is true?
9 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion and 9 A. No
10 overbroad. Vague and ambiguous. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 THE WITNESS: No. 11 to"finding." Cdllsfor speculation. Callsfor an
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Therecommendation isthat the 12 expert opinion. Vagueastotime.
13 State should unify it's oversight of schoal facility 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andrecommendation No. 4 is
14 projects -- sort of recommendation 3A and 3B, I'm 14 that theingtitute -- which | understand you disagree
15 including the A and B in there -- and concentrate 15 with, solet's take out the who aspect of recommendation
16 compliance efforts on low-performing school digtricts. 16 No. 4 andjust the task aspect of it -- should develop
17 As s0 defined have you formed an opinion on 3A, 17 protocoalsfor life cycle engineering of facilities,
18 whether the State should unify its oversight of schoal 18 deveop cost-effective plans for use by school
19 facility projects? 19 didtricts, and recommend financid incentives for
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 didrictsthat incorporate life cycle facility
21 to"unify." Cdllsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. 21 management. It goeson to say that the ingtitute should
22 Cadlsfor an expert opinion. 22 provide cost-effective plans, define best practices and
23 THE WITNESS: No. 23 consolidate buying power.
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Have you formed an opinionon 24 Do you seethat?
25 whether the State should concentrate compliance efforts, 25 A Yes
Page 334 Page 336
1 fromthe context they're talking about, facilities 1 Q. Let'stakeout theissue of whether thisisan
2 compliance efforts on low-performing school districts? 2 inditute or some other entity of state government, and
3 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 3 subgtitute in the word "the State" for "the schoal
4 THEWITNESS: No. 4 facility indtitute.”
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Back to-- let metake you back 5 Have you devel oped an opinion as to whether the
6 toNo. 2 again. On your opinion that the personnel 6 State should develop protocolsfor life cycle
7 resources are available, they just need to be hired, did 7 engineering of facilities?
8 you have any -- what were you drawing on for that 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
9 opinion, what evidence were you drawing on? 9 Cdlsfor speculaion. Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates his 10 expert opinion.
11 testimony. 11 THEWITNESS: No.
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Vagueasto "lifecycle
13 inadmissible opinion. 13 engineering of facilities."
14 THE WITNESS: Genera opinion. 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou developed an opinion
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: No particular -- no study, for 15 astowhether the State should develop cost-effective
16 example? 16 plansfor use by school districts?
17 A. No. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 Q. Anyparticular instances that stand out in your 18 to"the State" and "cost-€ffective plans.” Cdlls for
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mind as demonstrating that to be true?

A. No.

Q. Takealook at life cycle investing, finding

No. 4, recommendation No. 4.

A.  Okay.

Q. Finding No. 4, while the State has taken steps

to hold down construction costs, it has no mechanisms or
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speculation. Lacks foundation. Overbroad and compound.
MR. SEFERIAN: Cdllsfor aninadmissible
opinion.
THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou developed an opinion
asto whether the State should recommend financia
incentives for districts that incorporate life cycle
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1 facility management? 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Doyouhaveaview asyou sit
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 2 heretoday asto under -- asto under which topics those
3 to"life cyclefacility management.” Overbroad. Cdls 3 conditions are met?
4 for speculaion. Lacksfoundation. Cdls for an expert 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
5 opinion. 5 to"topics." Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation.
6 THE WITNESS: No. 6 Cadlsfor an expert opinion.
7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And thenthere'saspecific 7 THE WITNESS: Certainly the adoption of
8 recommendation about defining best practices under 8 ingructional materials. After that, | can't giveyou a
9 recommendation 4. 9 gpecific example.
10 Do you have aview generally asto whether the 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by "adoption," you mean
11 Staehasarolein defining best practices for school 11 not -- it's not the best practices of the process of
12 digtricts? 12 adopting them, but the actual selection of them?
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 13 A Yes
14 to"best practices for schoal districts." 14 Q. Finding No. 5, why don't you take alook at
15 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible legd 15 that, determining need. Tell me when you're done.
16 opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto "role.” Lacks 16 A. Okay. No.
17 foundation. 17 Q. Justtel mewhenyou're done.
18 THE WITNESS: The question regarding 18 A. I'mdone
19 facilities? 19 Q. Okay.
20 MR. JACOBS: No, | was abstracting from that 20 MR. VIRJEE: That'strue anticipation.
21 for aminute. 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'sbreak finding No. 5 down
22 THEWITNESS: Soit's not about this 22 and well take out the -- I'm not interested in while
23 recommendation. What's the question about? 23 the Stateisan equal partner in developing school
24 MR. JACOBS: Will you read it back, please. 24 facilities.
25 (Record read.) 25 | want to start with, the State does not have
Page 338 Page 340
1 MR. VIRJEE: And then the question was 1 aninventory of buildings.
2 clarified by Mr. Jacobs that he was not talking about 2 Do you have an opinion as to whether that
3 fadilities, but generdly. 3 statement istrue or not?
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to "best 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
5 practices.” 5 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to
6 THEWITNESS: Yes. 6 "inventory."
7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion? 7 THE WITNESS: Yes.
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 8 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: What isyour opinion?
9 THEWITNESS: In limited circumstances. 9 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isfacilities one of those 10 THE WITNESS:. The second part of that isatrue
11 circumstances? 11 statement.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 12 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: That isthat the State does not
13 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Vague and 13 haveaninventory?
14 ambiguous asto best practices. Callsfor an expert 14 A. Correct.
15 opinion. 15 Q. Andthefinding goeson. Andwell just
16 THE WITNESS: Possibly. 16 rewriteit dightly so that it's clear.
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did you have some particular 17 A.  Whydolreadit?
18 circumstances in mind where you are more certain it 18 Q. Good point. Just to take out the conjunctions
19 would be beneficid if the State defined best practices? 19 inthere. The state -- the finding isthat the State
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 20 does not have a methodical way to project and plan for
21 Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an expert opinion. Vague 21 future needs.
22 and ambiguous as to "best practices." 22 Do you see that?
23 THE WITNESS: Where the Constitution requires 23 A, Yes
24 it and where the State has the best level of 24 Q.  Anddo you have an opinion asto whether that
25 information. 25 findingistrue?
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 THE WITNESS: No.
2 to"future needs." Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And the second part of that
3 foundation. Vague astotime, and incomplete 3 is--canl shortenit by simply saying, to develop and
4 hypotheticd. 4  maintain -- I'm sorry, to project -- let's see. What
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible 5 arethey proposing here?
6 opinion. 6 Let'stake it from the beginning. The
7 THE WITNESS: No. 7 recommendation isthat the governor and thelegidature
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthelast findingisthat 8 should enact legidation directing the office of public
9 the State does not have a methodical way to assess 9 school construction to project -- in partnership with
10 progress toward meeting those needs. 10 local schoal districts to project long-term facilities
11 Do you seethat? 11 needs.
12 A, Wasn't that thelast question? 12 Do you have an opinion as to whether that'sa
13 Q. No,itwasproject and plan. 13 good ideaor not?
14 A. Oh,okay. | seethat. 14 A. No.
15 Q. Doyou have an opinion asto whether that 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
16 findingistrue or not? 16 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Callsfor
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 17 anexpert opinion.
18 to"that finding." Vague and ambiguous asto need and 18 THE WITNESS: No.
19 "methodica." Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthen| don't see much point
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible 20 inasking you about the allocation of state funds point.
21 opinion. 21 Adequate investment, why don't you take alook
22 THE WITNESS: No. 22 at that finding and recommendation.
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Therecommendation No.5is 23 A.  Okay.
24  that the governor and the legislature should enact 24 Q. Sofinding No. 6, while voters have supported
25 legidation directing the office of public schoal 25 statewide bond efforts, loca school districts do not,
Page 342 Page 344
1 construction in partnership with loca school districts 1 asawhole, havereliable and efficient mechanisms for
2 todevelop and maintain an inventory of facilities, 2 financing facility needs.
3 project long-term facility needs, and assessthe 3 Do you have an opinion as whether that finding
4 dlocation of gtate funds. 4 iscorrect?
5 Do you have an opinion as to whether al of 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
6 that or some of that isagood idea? 6 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "reliable
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Callsfor 7 and efficient mechanisms." Callsfor an expert opinion.
8 speculation. Lacks foundation. Vague and ambiguous. 8 Incomplete hypothetical.
9 Cdlsfor an expert opinion. 9 THE WITNESS: At thetime of thisreport or
10 THE WITNESS: Which of thosetwo questionsdo | 10 now?
11 youwant meto answer? 11 MR. JACOBS: I'll take thefirgt, first.
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | wastryingtogo fagter. If 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
13 youwant meto divideit up, | will. Do you want meto 13 THEWITNESS: Yes.
14 divideit up? 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat was your opinion a
15 A Sure. 15 thetime of the report, whether that was true?
16 Q. | guessthefirst questionthenis, do you have 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
17 an opinion on whether it would be agood idea for the 17 Inadmissible opinion. Overly broad. Compound question.
18 governor and the legidature to enact legidation 18 THE WITNESS: Accurate.
19 directing the office of public school constructionin 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And hasthe situation changed?
20 partnership with locd school districts to develop and 20 A. Yes
21 maintain an inventory of facilities? 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And how hasit changed?
23 Cadlsfor inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguousas | 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
24 to"goodidea" Incomplete and improper hypothetical 24 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion.
25 question. 25 THE WITNESS: 55 percent local vote.
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1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Sowiththat change, thisis-- 1 MR. VIRJEE: He answered your question.
2 thisfinding is no longer true, in your judgment? 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered.
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 3 MR. JACOBS: Maybe | misunderstood.
4 Cadllsfor aninadmissible opinion. Overly broad. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou asked do you have an opinion,
5 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "this 5 hesaidno.
6 finding," and vague and ambiguous asto rdliable and 6 MR. JACOBS: No, you said, | think, do you
7 efficient mechanism. 7 agreewith that?
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question. 8 THE WITNESS: What's the question?
9 THE WITNESS: Y es, much lesstrue. 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mtrying to move ahead a
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It'sdtill partially true? 10 littlemore quickly. Do you have an opinion on that
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. 11 recommendation?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto 12 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.
13 “partidly true." Compound. Callsfor speculation. 13 THE WITNESS: Yes, asrelatesto thethird
14 Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an expert opinion. 14 bullet.
15 THE WITNESS: Partialy true. 15 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: That isassessand, if
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And partidly truein what way? 16 necessary, modify the ability of local districtsto
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 17 raserevenue?
18 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 18 A. Yes
19 THE WITNESS: Locd digtricts do have a 19 Q. How about just focusing on the development of a
20 reliable and efficient mechanism for financing 20 reliablelong-term plan that defines the State's
21 facilities needs. 21 financia contribution towards school facilities, that
22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That'swhy thisispartially 22 part of the recommendation?
23 fasg | think, right? 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
24 To summarize, | thought you were saying some 24 to"reliablelong-term plan." Callsfor speculation.
25 progress has been made in addressing this finding, but 25 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Cdls for
Page 346 Page 348
1 theré'smoreto be made; isthat correct? 1 anexpert opinion.
2 MR. VIRJEE: That misstates histestimony. Y ou 2 THE WITNESS: | have no opinion.
3 just asked whether he had an opinion whether the 3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Butl takeityou-- if |
4 daement weretrue or fase. 4 understood you correctly, there are aspects of the third
5 MR. JACOBS: Just state your objection. 5 bullet that you think are agood idea?
6 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou misstated histestimony. His 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates his
7 testimony will speak for itself. 7 testimony.
8 THE WITNESS: My opinionisthat loca school 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Calsfor an
9 digtrictsat this point do have ardliable and efficient 9 inadmissible opinion.
10 mechanism for financing facilities needs. 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And you probably are going to
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andtherecommendation, the | 11 tell methat you think some of those have been done
12 governor and the legidature should develop ardiable 12 dready; isthat right?
13 long-term plan that defines the State's financia 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question.
14  contribution toward school facilities and provides loca 14 THE WITNESS: | agree with the recommendation
15 digricts with the toolsto fund their share of 15 onthethird bullet.
16 projects. 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you bdievethat the third
17 Leaving aside the specifics as to what the plan 17 bullet has, in part or in whole, been addressed?
18 should include, do you agree with the recommendation? 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question.
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 19 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation. Calsfor an
20 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Vague and 20 inadmissible opinion.
21 ambiguous asto "reliable long-term plan." Callsfor an 21 MR. VIRJEE: Also compound.
22 expert opinion. 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Vagueastotime.
23 THE WITNESS: No. 23 THEWITNESS: Yes.
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthat because you have no 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Helping the children of Los
25 opiniononit, or that you disagree with it? 25 Angdes, finding 7, recommendation 7.
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MR. JORDAN: If you want to savetime, Mike,
I'm going to have an objection to each one of these
questionsthat it will call for an expert opinion or
speculation and lacks foundation.

MR. JACOBS: Canl just agreethat that'sa
standing objection to the line of questioning?

MR. JORDAN: That's what I'm asking.

MR. JACOBS: Terrific. Will that work for
everybody dse here?

MR. SEFERIAN: No, thank you.

MR. JORDAN: | guess unlesswe havea
stipulation that | can haveit, then | better go ahead
and do it to each one.

MR. JACOBS: No one disagrees with him having a
standing objection, do you?

MR. SEFERIAN: No, | don't, but | just meant
for myself personaly.

MR. JACOBS: And, Fram, you don't disagree with
him having that standing objection?

MR. VIRJEE: Just let me know when the -- the
standing objection begins and ends, that's all.

MR. JACOBS: Abe, you don't disagree?

MR. HAJELA: No problem.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Tdl mewhenyou're done.
A.  I'mdone.
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Let's bresk that down. Do you have an opinion
asof -- just to do this quickly, can | ask you both as
of today and as of February 8th, 2000, in the same
guestion?

Do you have an opinion as to whether the
facility-related problemsin California's largest school
digtrict are pervasive and persistent?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. V ague and ambiguous asto "pervasive
and persistent.” Vague astotime.

MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor inadmissible opinion.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion?
A.  True

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And truefor both thetimes,
February 8th, 2000, and today?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: Y ou're stopping & persistent?

MR. JACOBS: Correct.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have an opinion asto
whether now the whole sentence is true, that the
problems are so pervasive and persistent, quote, that

the State should take specific and drastic action,
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Q. Finding No. 7, another generation of children

in Los Angeles has been doomed to overcrowded,
uninspiring and unhealthy schools because of persistent
incompetence by the Los Angeles Unified School District.

Now, thiswas written as of February 8th, 2000,
so maybe | should ask you, as of the time -- did you
have an opinion as to whether the substance of this
finding was true as of February 2000?

MR. JORDAN: Mike, with your consent, thisis
where my standing objection starts.

MR. JACOBS:. Sure.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. V ague and ambiguous asto
"overcrowded, uninspiring and unhealthy." Callsfor an
expert opinion. Incomplete hypothetical.

MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question.

THEWITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You have no opinion on that?
A. Right

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Now, if you bresk down the
elements of the finding underneath it, the
facility-related problemsin Californias largest school
digtricts are so pervasive and persistent that the State
should take specific and drastic action.
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period, close quote?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor an inadmissible opinion. Incomplete and
improper hypothetical question. Vague and ambiguous as
to "drastic’ and "action." Lacks foundation.

THEWITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thatis, you have no opinion or
you disagree with it?

A. | havenoopinion.

Q. Thenext sentence, the district's personnel

practices have failed to ensure that high-caliber
professionsfill key positions, do you have an opinion

on whether that's true?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "personnel practices." Callsfor speculation and
lacks foundation, and calls for an expert opinion.

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
"high-caliber."

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: Inaccurate.

Q BY MR. JACOBS: Inaccurate as of both times?
A. Yes
Q. And doyou have any particular -- are you
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thinking of anything by way of evidence that you're
relying on for that purpose?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

THE WITNESS: Personnel practices are not their
problem, in my opinion.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat isthe problem?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
Incomplete and improper hypothetica question. Lacks
foundation. Callsfor an inadmissible opinion.

MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto the
"problem.” Callsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: My uninformed opinion isthat the
Board is unable to make decisions regarding land.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: So by personne practices, you
weren't referring only to the practices of the district
with respect to personnel but the -- you also believe
that it's not the personnel themselvesin the facilities
arms of the district that are the issue; is that
correct?

MR. JORDAN: That misstates.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to facilitiesarm. Calls for speculation and lacks any
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. V ague and ambiguous asto
"competency-based leadership.” Incomplete hypothetical.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Similar problems plagued the
district when the commission reviewed its facility
program in 1980 and the district's failings have been
further documented by a recent internal audit.

Do you know whether that's true or not?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have an opinion on how
far back the facilities -- the facility-related problems
in LAUSD can be dated?

MR. JORDAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto
"facilities-related problems." Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion.

THE WITNESS: No specific dates or times.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you think it dates back to
the 1980s?

24 foundation. Vague astotime. Calsfor an expert 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
25 opinion. 25 MR. JORDAN: Same objection.
Page 354 Page 356
1 THE WITNESS. What's the question? 1 MR. VIRJEE: And lacksfoundation. Vague and
2 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: | wanted to make sure you 2 ambiguous asto "facilities-related problems.”
3 weren't focusing -- in answering that you disagree, | 3 THE WITNESS: That would be my opinion.
4 wanted to make sure you weren't focusing only on the 4 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Do you bhdievethat as reported
5 concept of personnel practices as opposed to the actud 5 inthe next sentence, the problems are endemic and
6 results of those practices in terms of the caliber of 6 systemic?
7 the professionasfilling key positions. 7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation
8 | takeit you -- 8 vague and ambiguous asto “"problems.” Callsfor an
9 A. | disag -- 9 inadmissible opinion. Overly broad.
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Pleasewait. He hasn't asked a 10 THE WITNESS: No.
11 question yet. 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Do you believethat they are
12 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Y ou disagree with? 12 endemic?
13 A. Theentire sentence. 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 Q. Theorganizationa structure divides 14 to"endemic." Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
15 responsibility in ways that thwart accountability. 15 Callsfor an expert opinion.
16 Do you have an opinion on whether that's true 16 THE WITNESS: No.
17 or not? 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Do you bdlievethey're
18 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto 18 systemdtic?
19 ‘"organizationa structure" and "accountability.” Calls 19 A. No.
20 for speculation and lacks foundation. Calls for an 20 Q. Althoughthisisin thefindings section, there
21 expert opinion. 21 aretwo recommendations in the remainder of the
22 THE WITNESS. No. 22 paragraph, given the large share of educationa
23 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: How about the next sentence, 23 resources consumed by the district, the State Allocation
24 the school board has not provided the compentency-based | 24 Board should not give the district any additional
25 leadership needed to guide alarge public organization? 25 resources until the appropriate reforms have been put in
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1 place 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Isityour opinion that that
2 Do you have an opinion on whether that's a good 2 should not be done?
3 ideaor not? 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 4 Callsfor aninadmissible opinion.
5 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Alsocdls 5 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague and ambiguous asto
6 for an expert opinion. 6 ‘"that."
7 THEWITNESS: Yes. 7 THEWITNESS: | disagree with the
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What'syour opinion? 8 recommendation 7 asit's written.
9 A. |disagree 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthenintermsof structura
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 10 or administrative solutions that are listed under
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And giventhe 700,000 children 11 that -- tomovethisaong, | take it that you don't
12 involved -- 12 think that the governor and legislature should break up
13 MR. JORDAN: I'm sorry, Mike, | missed the 13 LAUSD into smdler schoal districts.
14 answer. 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
15 MR. JACOBS: He disagrees. 15 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Compound question.
16 Q. Giventhe 700,000 childreninvolved, state 16 Vague and ambiguous asto "break up." Cdlsfor
17 policymakers should not accept empty promises but demand | 17 speculation. Incomplete and improper hypothetical
18 documented performance. 18 question.
19 Do you have an opinion on that recommendation? 19 THE WITNESS: No.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | asked you aquestioninthe
21 to"empty promises." Incomplete hypothetical. Calls 21 negative, so the nois potentialy ambiguous. No what?
22 for speculation. Lacks foundation. Callsfor an expert 22 MR. VIRJEE: No to your question.
23 opinion. 23 THE WITNESS: Not near as ambiguous as your
24 THEWITNESS: No. 24 question.
25 MR. JACOBS: Let's go on to the recommendation 25 MR. JORDAN: | think that's afair statement.
Page 358 Page 360
1 7. Onbehdf of the children of Los Angeles, the 1 Therecordisgoing to be unclear unlessthat's
2 governor and the legidature should intervene to 2 daified.
3 fundamentally reform the Los Angeles Unified School 3 MR. VIRJEE: That's been the case every timewe
4 Didtrict. And then there are several proposed 4 darted aquestion with "l tekeit."
5 dternatives, break up LAUSD into smaller schoal 5 MR. JORDAN: The beginning was do you disagree
6 didricts, create an independent authority to develop 6 with and then he said no and --
7 school facilitiesin Los Angeles, and severa others, 7 MR. JACOBS: I'mtrying to moveit aong.
8 but those are the two that | want to ask you about, as 8 Q. Shouldthegovernor and legidature break up
9 wadl asthe general -- the recommendation in general. 9 LAUSD into smaler schoal districts?
10 So let's take the general casefirst. Do you 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
11 believethat as agenera matter the governor and the 11 Vague and ambiguous. Incomplete hypothetical.
12 legidature should intervene to fundamentally reform the 12 THE WITNESS: | don't know.
13 LosAngeles Unified School District? 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Should the governor and
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 legidature create an independent authority to develop
15 to"fundamentaly reform." Callsfor speculation. 15 schoal facilitiesin Los Angeles?
16 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Incomplete
17 THE WITNESS: No. 17 hypothetical. Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthisisacasewhereyou 18 Calsfor an expert opinion.
19 have-- | didn't start right. 'Y ou have an opinion on 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
20 that topic, | tekeit? 20 ‘"independent authority."
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 THE WITNESS: | have no opinion.
22 towhat you teke. 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou said with respect to
23 THEWITNESS: Yes. 23 the general recommendation that, as written, you
24 MR. VIRJEE: Youreaskingif hehasan 24 disagreed withiit.
25 opinion. Why don't you just ask him that. 25 Arethere some particular interventions by the
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1 governor and the legidature with respect to reform of 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Same abjections.
2 theLos Angeles Unified School District that you believe 2 THE WITNESS: Pass the bond issues as proposed
3 tobegood ideas? 3 by the governor.
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 4 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Anything else?
5 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "reform” 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
6 and"goodideas." Incomplete hypothetical. 6 THE WITNESS: That'sall | can think of now.
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor an inadmissible 7 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: When you were commenting on the
8 opinion. Overly broad. 8 $600 million that -- let me start over.
9 THEWITNESS. Yes. 9 When you were commenting on the Los Angeles
10 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And what are those? 10 Unified School District's performance in building the
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 11 facilities to address the class size reduction issues
12 THE WITNESS: Many things. For example, 12 that we discussed earlier, did your review of that
13 providing training to teachers in a fundamental 13 waiver application lead you to any conclusions about
14  curriculum to reform their educational system. 14 actions that should be taken at the state level to
15 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Andisthisarecommendation | 15 demand better performance from LAUSD in facilities
16 for aprogram that is not currently in place? 16 construction?
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Please read back that question.
18 Lacks foundation. 18 (Record read.)
19 THE WITNESS. No. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
20 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Isit arecommendation for an 20 Compound. Nonsensical. Callsfor speculation and lacks
21 expansion of an existing program? 21 foundation. Assumes his comments on those two things
22 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 22 were connected, and they were not. Misstates his
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an 23 testimony.
24 inadmissible opinion. Incomplete and improper 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
25 hypothetical opinion. 25 Callsfor an inadmissible opinion.
Page 362 Page 364
1 THEWITNESS: Yes. 1 THE WITNESS: Yes.
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddo you have aparticular 2 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: What was your opinion?
3 programin mind? 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 4 THE WITNESS: Submission by the Didtrict, if
5 THEWITNESS: | just gave you an example. 5 carried out, will -- in the timeline proposed will
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any other 6 resolve avery long-standing issue.
7 recommendations for how the governor and legidature 7 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Did you have any other
8 should intervene to -- with respect to reform of the Los 8 opinions?
9 Angees Unified School District? 9 A. No.
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as 10 Q. Did you believe that the District would carry
11 to"intervene" and "reform.” Assumesfactsnotin 11 out thetimeline?
12 evidence. Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
13 Callsfor an expert opinion. Incomplete hypothetical. 13 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "carry out
14 THE WITNESS: Not off the top of my head. 14 thetimeline.”
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Do you have an opinion asto 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague astotime.
16 any changes that should be made by the governor and the 16 THE WITNESS: Yes.
17 legidature that would help address the facility-related 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Counsd, thisbe agoodtimeto
18 problemsat Los Angeles Unified School Digtrict? 18 bresk for lunch?
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 19 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
20 to“facility-related problems.” Also calsfor 20 MR. JORDAN: And we may as well stop the
21 speculation. Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert 21 continuing objection at this point.
22 opinion. Vague astotime. Assumesfactsnotin 22 MR. JACOBS: Okay.
23 evidence. 23 (Lunch recess taken.)
24 THEWITNESS: Yes. 24 (Exhibit SAD-251 was marked.)
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What areyour beliefs? 25 Q. BY MR. JACOBS. Weve marked as the next
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deposition exhibit, Mr. Mockler, amemo from you to
Susan Kennedy, Scott Hill, Ray Belide, Alan Bersin and
Susan Tacheny, as wdll as the file, dated November 1,
2000, re high school exit exam, status and need for
magjor decisions.

And my question to you is -- if you could scan
the memo to refresh your recallection asto it, but my
guestion to you is focused on paragraph 4 of page 3.

MR. VIRJEE: Paragraph numbered 4?

MR. JACOBS: | mean the bottom one under
recommended actions.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.
Q. BY MR. JACOBS: First of dl, the addressees on
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standards-based materials conditioned on the receipt of
those materias, continuation and simplification of the
laws which provide each student who isin risk of or has
not passed the high school exit exam to be given
instruction so that they may pass the high school exit
exam.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwith respect tothat last
component is that a mechanism that, as of the time of
this memo, was in place aready?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "mechanism.”

THE WITNESS: Partially.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What program or mechanism are

14 this memo, | recognize some of the names, but what'sthe | 14 youreferring to?
15 reason why these particular people were sent thismemo? | 15 A.  Thestatute provides that students who are at
16 A.  Yes 16 risk or who have not -- or have not passed the high
17 Q. What'sthereason? 17 school exit exam have accessto -- the schoal districts
18 A.  Theywereinvolved in reviewing the HUMRRO 18 have access to a continuous appropriation of funding
19 report and commenting on next steps regarding the high 19 which alows them to have special classes to make up any
20 school exit exam. 20 deficitsthat are provided -- that are deemed to be
21 Q. Isthissome sort of subcommittee or other 21 necessary as aresult of the exam or analysis prior to
22 congtituted body, or just an informal assembly of 22 theexam.
23 personages? 23 Q. Whatis--isthereanamefor that program?
24 A.  Informa assembly. 24 A. Nospecific name, but it'sin the code.
25 Q.  Under recommended actionsitem 4 it says, 25 Q. Andisitaprogram that's currently funded?
Page 366 Page 368
1 proposeaseries of initiatives to address opportunity 1 A Yes
2 tolearnissues, including ensuring that adequate 2 Q. Andbeing accessed by school districts?
3 ingtructional materials are available, that staff 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
4 devdopment is aligned to standards, and that programs 4 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to access.
5 for targeted assistance are developed for schools with 5 THEWITNESS: Yes.
6 large populations who are not prepared to mest the 6 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Do you have any designator for
7 dandards. Provide incentives for schoolsto 7 theprogram? Isthere astatutory provision, for
8 participate in these programs. 8 example, that you could refer to it by?
9 Do you see that? 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor alegd
10 A,  Yes 10 conclusion.
11 Q. Thisislanguagethat you actually input into 11 THE WITNESS: | can't cite the code section,
12 thismemo? 12 butinlaw thereis such aprogram.
13 MR. VIRJEE: Are you asking the language you 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisit administered by the
14 just read? 14 Department of Ed?
15 MR. JACOBS. Yes. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
16 THEWITNESS: Yes. 16 to"administered.”
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Anddidyou havein mind 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Cadlsfor alega conclusion.
18 anything in -- what did you havein mind in terms of a 18 THEWITNESS: Yes.
19 sariesof initiatives, other than what's set forth in 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And do you know which group?
20 thisparagraph? 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 21 to"group." Calsfor speculation.
22 evidence. Assumes he had any others. 22 MR. JACOBS: Administers the program.
23 THE WITNESS: Continuation of funding for 23 THEWITNESS: To my knowledge, the
24 ingtructional materials, expansion of the professiona 24 apportionment division.
25 development activities for teachers dligned to 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And do you know the current
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1 funding leve for the program? 1 deveoped for schools with large populations who are not
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 2 prepared to meet the standards?
3 THE WITNESS: As| understand the statute, 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
4 thereisunlimited funding for that program. 4 THE WITNESS: No.
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Whenyou say "unlimited 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What did you mean?
6 funding," isthere adistinction between funding and 6 A. | meantthat the current program needed to be
7 appropriation in this context? 7  refined and appropriately funded, and it was.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 8 Q. Whenwastha?
9 Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. 9 A | don't recall.
10 THE WITNESS: Statute provides that schoal 10 Q It was refined?
11 digtricts may provide extra assistance to students and 11 A Yes
12 charge on an hourly basis, and that those funds are 12 Q. Inwha way?
13 without limit with respect to those hours. 13 A. Hourly rate wasincreased.
14 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andwhat'syour understanding, 14 Q. Andwasthat the sum and substance of the
15 then, of how that isfigured into the state budget? 15 refinements you had in mind?
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 16 A, Yes
17 Lacksfoundation. Also assumes facts not in evidence. 17 Q. Soasof today, weretheinitiatives that you
18 THE WITNESS: There's an appropriation in the 18 had in mind then when you wrote this memo -- strike that
19 date budget as an estimate of its cost. 19 and start over again.
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And asyou understand the way 20 When you wrote this memo and had in mind a
21 thisworksthen, isthere any budgetary limit on how 21 seriesof initiatives, asyou look at the programsin
22 much digtricts can draw down the resource available 22 placetoday, the objectives that you set forth here, do
23 under thisprovision? 23 you bdieve they've been met?
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 Lacksfoundation. 25 to "objectives," "series of initiatives," and assumes
Page 370 Page 372
1 THE WITNESS: Not with respect to hours, no. 1 factsnotinevidence. Calsfor speculaion. Vague
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And how about the charge per 2 and ambiguous asto "met."
3 hour, isthat restricted? 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.
4 A. That'ssetforthin statute. 4 THEWITNESS: Yes.
5 Q. Doyou happentoknow thefigure? 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And then asyou look
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The statute speaks for 6 prospectively today at the question of the
7 itsdf, and that callsfor alega conclusion. 7 implementation of the high schoal exit exam, do you have
8 THE WITNESS:. No. 8 inmind today any additiona initiatives to address
9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wereyou proposing any 9 opportunity to learn issues that you believe should be
10 modificationsto this-- did you have in mind proposing 10 undertaken?
11 modificationsto this program? 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as 12 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto
13 to"modifications.” Assumesfacts not in evidence. 13 "opportunity to learn" and calls for an expert opinion.
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Vagueastotime. 14 THE WITNESS: No.
15 THE WITNESS: | don't recall. 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: On paragraph one of recommended
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What the memo saysisthat 16 actions you wrote, introduce urgency legislation in
17 programs for targeted systems are developed for schools 17 January to resolve test development and timing issues
18 with large populations who are not prepared to meet the 18 and to ensure student access to the curriculum required
19 standards. 19 bythetest.
20 A. My understanding of your question was -- 20 Wheat did you mean by ensuring student access to
21 MR. SEFERIAN: He hasn't asked a question yet. 21 thecurriculum required by the test?
22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What didyoumeanwithrespect | 22 A.  That the students taking the test had a
23 tothe"are developed” language there? 23 reasonable opportunity to have the subjects covered on
24 Let me put alittle differently. Did you mean 24 thetest available to them in school.
25 that programs for targeted assistance need to be 25 Q. Andyou had in mind some specific changesin

36 (Pages 369 to 372)




PEBoo~w~ooswNE

NRNNNNRNNRE R R R R R
ORWONRPROOONOUDWN

Page 373

legidation that you believed needed to be made in order
to ensure such access?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacksfoundation. Calsfor an expert opinion.

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THE WITNESS: It was smply a matter of time.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What was a matter of time, Sir?
A.  Astowhether the consequence for the test
should be imposed in 204 or 205.

Q. Sotheurgency legidation you had in mind --
if I can try and move this dong by guessing as to what
you are saying and asking you to confirmit or not.

What you're saying is that you thought an
additional year was going to be needed in order to
ensure student access to the curriculum required by the
test?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Incomplete
hypothetical. Calls for speculation. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor an expert opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto
what you were saying. The document speaks for itself.

MR. SEFERIAN: Misstates the witness
testimony.

THE WITNESS: That was my recommendation at
that time.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And that wasthe particular
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the instruction?

MR. VIRJEE: If theinformation was part of the
official information privilege or deliberative process,
then you shouldn't answer the question.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have an understanding of
the scope of those privileges?

MR. SEFERIAN: I'll object. | think thet calls
for alegal conclusion.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sir?

A. | don't know.

Q.  Youdont have an understanding of the scope
then? But for your lawyer'sinstruction would you be
answering the question differently?

A.  No,my--

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: My understanding is
communications with the governor in my official capacity
at thetime is something I'm not supposed to reveal.
That's my understanding.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sothenyou're not goingto
answer the -- | have to do thisto set up the issue for
later proceedings.

Y our answer to the question, aside from the
period when you were acting secretary is that, no, you

©CooO~NOULE, WN B

NNNNNPEPRRERRRRERRE
RONPQOQOWONOUNWNERO

25

Page 374

urgency legidation that you had at that time?

A.  Correct.

Q. Andtoday have you made any -- as of today, do
you have aview as to when it would be appropriate to
introduce the requirement of passage of the test for
graduation?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Callsfor
an expert opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto
"appropriate."

THEWITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Just to ask thisacouple of
different ways, have you made any recommendations since
this memo as to an effective date of the high schoal

exit exam?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "effective date." Also cdlsfor speculation. And
also abject to the extent it calls for attorney/client
privileged information or would invade the officia
information privilege.

THE WITNESS: Can| ask aquestion of my
lawyer? Areyou talking about a public statement? If
it's a private statement with respect to the governor,

I'm not allowed to answer that question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthat your understanding of
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have not made a recommendetion as to an effective date
of the high school exit exam since this memo; is that
correct?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "recommendation.” Lacks foundation. And object to
the extent it would invade the attorney/client privilege
or the official information privilege or the
deliberative process privilege.

THEWITNESS: What do | do?

MR. VIRJEE: If you can answer without
violating those privileges, then you should.

THEWITNESS: | cannot.

MR. JACOBS: Would you read back the question,
please. And I'll ask you to consider the question
again.

(Record read.)

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And then are you constrained to
answer the question as to the period when you were

acting secretary by virtue of the instruction you've

been given by your counsel, correct?

A. Yes

Q. Andyou'regoing to follow that instruction?

A. Yes

Q.  Well continue the walk down memory lane. 1'd
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like to show you two articles dated December 7th, 2000.
And well mark the one from the San Jose Mercury News as
252, and the Contra Costa Times as 253.

(Exhibits SAD-252 and SAD-253 were marked.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | can point you to whereI'm
going to ask you about in these, but you'll probably
want to read the articlesin their entirety.

On Exhibit 252 in the upper right-hand corner,
page 146, you're quoted in the second and third
paragraphs, and in 253 upper right-hand corner, page
143, you're quoted in the middle of that page.

A.  What'sthe next page? Y ou want me to do both
of them at the same time?
Q. Yeah

MR. VIRJEE: And he suggests that you read the
entire -- entirety of both articles.

THEWITNESS: Y eah.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Ready?

A. Sure

Q. Let'slook at 252 first. The headline on this
story, where students are neediest, teachers often have
little training, number of instructors without full
credentials increases statewide.

And as | mentioned, thisis December 7th, 2000.
And on the second page of the article you are quoted as

PBoo~onswNE

NNNNNRNNRE R R R R R
ORWONRPROOONOUDWN

Page 379
Q.  Anything dse by way of context?
A. No.
Q Do you hold that view today?
A. Yes

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor an inadmissible opinion. Overly broad.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat do you base that
opinion on?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor inadmissible opinion. Overly broad.
Incomplete hypothetical question.

THE WITNESS: What opinion?

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Theonethat | just asked you
whether you hold it today and you said yes.

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. Vague and
ambiguous.

THE WITNESS: The opinion regarding the quality
of intern teachers compared to other teachers?

MR. JACOBS: Exactly.

THE WITNESS: Significant but not sustained
research which suggests that the intern teachers have
skills equal to, and in some cases greater than -- as
teachers who come from schools of education.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And canyou recall theresearch
you're relying on?
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saying, | think we're going to see aturnaround
absolutely, said John B. Mockler, the interim education
secretary for Governor Gray Davis, noting that many
low-performing schools aready have made significant
progress toward their academic targets in the state's
ranking system.

Thisreport offers a, quote, static view of a
very dynamic situation, close quote, he added. We would
hope the massive infusion the governor has made in both
genera programs and his focused efforts on teacher
training, teachers' staff development and teacher
recruitment will dramatically improve this picture over
time.

Asyou best recall the conversation that led to
these quotations, are the quotations accurate?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "accurate.”

MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question.

THE WITNESS: Accurate out of context.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat'sthe proper context?
A. | began by saying we don't accept the notion
that an interned teacher is any less qualified than
teachers coming out of teacher training ingtitutionsin
their first year, so we do not accept the premise of the
report asit's written.
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A.  Not off thetop of my head.
Q.  Anything about the research that would help us
chaseit down, who did it, when it was done?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation
asto what might help you.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sowhenyou sad, | think were
going to see aturnaround, absolutely, what kind of
turnaround did you have in mind?

A.  Asl recdl, the question, they said, do you
believe we're going to have aturnaround? And | said,
yes. And they said, do you redly think there's going
to beaturnaround? And | said, yes, absolutely there's
going to be aturnaround. So the context isredly a
little backwards. | said absolutely have aturnaround,
not turnabout absolutely, just for context. Yeah, |
think so. | think we have some evidence that the --

MR. VIRJEE: Hejust asked what you were
referring to.

THEWITNESS: Yes, | think thereis evidence
that the distribution of teachers on arelative basisis
getting better.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddigribution of what kind
of teachers?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
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1 Cadllsfor aninadmissible opinion. 1 Q BY MR JACOBS: Sol'm having troublefollowing
2 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto 2 what the universe of teachersthen is as you were
3 "what kind of teachers." 3 talking about the distribution of teachers.
4 THE WITNESS: | don't know what you mean by 4 Y ou have credentiaed teachers who have
5 that. 5 completed ateacher training program and you have your
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. What did you mean when you said 6 qudlified intern teachers?
7 thedistribution of teachers is getting better? 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What other kinds of teachers
9 THE WITNESS: | meant that qualified intern 9 arein, for example, low-performing schools?
10 teacherswere -- their distribution wasimproving in 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 low-performing schooals. 11 to"credentialed teachers."
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by qualified intern 12 THE WITNESS: Emergency teachers.
13 teacher, what do you mean? 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by emergency teacher, you
14 A. | meanteachersthat meetsthe qualifications 14 mean ateacher on an emergency credential?
15 under law of being an intern teacher. 15 A. Correct.
16 Q.  Andwasthat what you meant when you said 16 Q. Arethereany other kinds of teachers that you
17 that -- was that the kind of intern teacher that you 17 arethinking of in analyzing the distribution of
18 werereferring to when you said you disputed the 18 teachersinthis context?
19 proposition that intern teachers were inferior to 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
20 teachers coming out of teacher training programs? 20 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Calsfor
21 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Misstates the 21 speculdion.
22 witness testimony. 22 THE WITNESS: | think that's about it, in
23 THE WITNESS: That's part of it. 23 generd.
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What elsedid you have in mind? 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | understand, then, your
25 THE WITNESS: Distribution of qualified 25 testimony to be that there's been an improvement over
Page 382 Page 384
1 teachersto schools was getting better, and that 1 timeinthedistribution of emergency-credentialed
2 included intern teachers as well as teachers that were 2 teachersacrossthe system aswell, correct?
3 not intern teachers. 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. But by "intern teachers' you 4 Misstates the witness testimony. Callsfor an
5 mean, inthis context, teachers that meet the statutory 5 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto
6 qudificationsfor being an intern teacher? 6 "digtribution" and "improvement.”
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 7 THE WITNESS: Incorrect. Wrong.
8 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor alegd conclusion. 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: If | dothe subtraction, if
9 THEWITNESS: Yes. 9 there'sbeen an improvement in the distribution of the
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhat doyou understandthe | 10 two kinds of credentiaed teachers you talked about,
11 central requirements for such an intern teacher to be? 11 thenthe only remaining kind of teacher is
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor alegd 12 emergency-credentialed teacher. How can one occur
13 conclusion and lacks foundation. 13 without the other?
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
15 “centra." 15 asto"improvement” and "distribution.” Lacks
16 THE WITNESS: College degree, pass the subject 16 foundation. Callsfor aninadmissible opinion.
17 matter test, pass the CBEST, and enrolled in an approved 17 THE WITNESS: Y ou caled my attentionto a
18 intern program. 18 dtatement which says, | think we're goingto seea
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andjust tobeclear onthis, 19 turnaround. | till believethat. What does that mean?
20 whenyou said, | think were going to see aturnaround, 20 That meanswe will have fewer, in a sense, emergency and
21 itwasaturnaround in what? 21 other unqualified teachersin those schools as a percent
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 22 of their number.
23 THE WITNESS: Turnaround in the number of 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou till believe that
24  teachers, intern and regular teachers, intern and other 24 prospectively, correct, that we will see aturnaround?
25 credentiaed teachersin low-performing schoals. 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
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1 Incomplete hypothetical question. Callsfor 1 emergency-credentialed teechersin the last, say, 12
2 inadmissible opinion. 2 months?
3 THEWITNESS: Yes. 3 A.  Not with data subsequent to that report.
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Asyou st heretoday, you 4 Q. Turningto 253, let me ask you -- first of al,
5 don't believe we have, in fact, seen that turnaround 5 inthefirst pageit says, underqualified teachers are
6 yet, havewe? 6 those who hold emergency permits or do not have proper
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 7 subject areacredentiasfor their job.
8 Misstates the witness testimony. Cdlsfor an 8 Do you seethat?
9 inadmissible opinion. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Tell uswhere you're reading from,
10 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto 10 Miched.
11 “turnaround.” 11 MR. JACOBS: Fourth paragraph down, first page.
12 THE WITNESS: | don't know which way to answer 12 THE WITNESS: | seethat.
13 that question. Read that back. 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And my questiontoyouis, on
14 MR. JORDAN: And as adouble negative, | think, 14 thisissue of what you understand to be the problem area
15 that may be the problem. 15 hereto be, isthis an accurate categorization of the
16 MR. JACOBS: Let mewithdraw it. Let me start 16 credentiding or subject areaiissues for teachers?
17 again. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 Q. Asyou st heretoday, have you seen that 18 to"problemarea" Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks
19 turnaround yet? 19 foundation. Compound and nonsensical.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 20 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfactsnot in evidence.
21 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto 21 Vague and ambiguous as to "underqualified."
22 "turnaround.” 22 THE WITNESS: No.
23 THE WITNESS: | have no information to add on 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwhy not?
24  that. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What do you mean, "l have no 25 THE WITNESS: Because the story doesn't relate
Page 386 Page 388
1 information to add"? 1 tothestudy they're quoting on. That's not the
2 A. |dontknow. 2 definition of underqualified teachers used by the report
3 Q. Andthenyou said, thisreport offers -- 3 for which they're using that data.
4 according to the article -- agtatic view of avery 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. That wasmy question, isthat
5 dynamic situation. We would hope the massive infusion 5 your definition?
6 the governor has made in these programs, paraphrasing, 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto context.
7 will dramaticaly improve this picture over time. 7 THE WITNESS: No.
8 Asyou sit heretoday, | takeit you still have 8 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague asto in what context
9 that hope? 9 inthat would be a definition.
10 A.  Yes 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andwhy not?
11 Q. Andasyou sit heretoday, do you believe that 11 MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
12 since December 7, 2000, we have yet to -- we have seen 12 evidence. Assumes he has adefinition.
13 dramatic improvement in this picture? 13 THE WITNESS: Wdl, subject area credentid is
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 veryvague. If | have amagter'sin economic history
15 to"thispicture." Callsfor speculation. Lacks 15 from Harvard, I'm considered not to be qualified to
16 foundation. 16 teach history. | don't think that's a definition of
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical 17 underqualified teacher, but technically it may be.
18 question. 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Soyou think that the
19 THE WITNESS: Thedatain thisreport istwo 19 dédfinition in that sentence may be overinclusive?
20 yearsold. Inthereportin question, inthisarticle 20 A. | do.
21 thereisno datawith respect to the instant moment. 21 Q.  Andwith respect to teachers who hold emergency
22 Whenwe get that data, well know it. | can't speculate 22 permits, that is a category that, as a general matter,
23 onthat. 23 you believe represents an underqualified teacher?
24 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Whenyou say there's "no data," 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
25 you haven't seen recent reports on the distribution of 25 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Compound.
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Also --

MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor inadmissible opinion.
Vague and ambiguous as to "underqualified." Vagueasto
context.

THE WITNESS: My persond opinionisthat if
you want to look at the emergency permits, some are
quite qualified and many may not be. 1 would point out
that under the provisions of that definition you would
have suspicions of about athird of the Cathalic schools
in Cdifornia

MR. VIRJEE: Just answer his questions.

THE WITNESS: Sorry. Just have to get that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: On the second page of this,
your comments regarding the teaching as a priority block
ramp program are paraphrased there.

Do you seethat therein the one program
paragraph?

MR. VIRJEE: Which paragraph are you referring
to?

MR. JACOBS: It's under the John Mockler
paragraph.

THEWITNESS: Y eah.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And then you refer to the -- to
aprogram that helps students pay off their loans if
they're qualified and they agree to work in
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credentialed teachers?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation as to whether there is an absence of
data. Also callsfor speculation and lacks foundation
as to the expertise to answer the question.

MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THE WITNESS: It's my sense that these programs
in combination have been successful. | haveno -- |
cannot point you to a research document which would
prove that.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And how about any anecdota

evidence?

A. My daughter is becoming ateacher.

Q. That's good evidence.

A. In alow-performing school.

Q.  Which school is sheteaching in?

A. San Francisco Western Addition.

Q. I'm not going to invade the daughter/parent
privilege here.

A. I've had many stories, anecdotal stories and
information from districts that suggest that's been
helpful.

Q. And how about anecdotal information to the

contrary, do you have any of that?
A. No.
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hard-to-staff or low-performing schools?

MR. VIRJEE: | don't believe it says students
pay off their loans.

MR. JACOBS: Pay off student loans.

Q. Doyou seethat paragraph?

A. Yes

Q.  Withrespect to the teaching as a priority

block program, do you have any information on whether
that program has been effectivein helping
low-performing schools recruit and retain credentialed
teachers?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. V ague and ambiguous asto
"effective," and calls for an expert opinion.

THEWITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andwith respect to the student
loan pay-off program, do you have any information on
whether that program has been effective in aiding
low-performing schools to recruit and retain

credentialed teachers?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.

THEWITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inview of the absence of data,
do you have an opinion as whether either of those
programs have been effective in recruiting and retaining
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Q. Do you have an understanding of the role of
FCMAT in providing oversight over schoal districtsin
the state?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "role" and "oversight.”

THE WITNESS: What do you mean by that?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Do you usetheword "oversight"
in your discussions of educational policy?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad.

THE WITNESS: Not asit relatesto FCMAT.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What do you understand FCMAT's
job to be?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.

THE WITNESS: FCMAT --

MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor inadmissible legal
opinion.

THE WITNESS: FCMAT has several statutory and
funded budgetary issues.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. And are some of thoserelated
to oversight of schoal districts?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "oversight.”

MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible lega
opinion.

THE WITNESS: FCMAT may go in when invited or
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1 directed by the legidature to certain districts and 1 responsbilities?
2 under certain conditions. They may go in when a schoal 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
3 didrict hasfinancia circumstances on anormd basis. 3 to'"responsihilities." Callsfor speculation and lacks
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andto your -- isit your 4 foundation.
5 understanding that a State Board action isrequired in 5 THE WITNESS: | think they have too many
6 any of those circumstancesin order to involve FCMAT? 6 responsihbilities and amost no oversight.
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: No oversight of them?
8 to"required," and aso callsfor alega conclusion. 8 A Yes
9 THE WITNESS: No. 9 Q. Andwhat oversight of FCMAT ismissing?
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Improper hypothetical question. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou participated in any 11 Lacksfoundation.
12 discussions about whether FCMAT should beinvolvedina | 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical
13 particular school district? 13 question. Overly broad. Cdlsfor aninadmissible
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 opinion.
15 to"involved." Also object to the extent it cals for 15 (Record read.)
16 attorney/client privilege information or would invade 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
17 theofficid information or deliberative process 17 "missing." Incomplete and improper hypothetical
18 privilege. 18 question.
19 THEWITNESS: Y eah. 19 THE WITNESS: FCMAT isadministered by a
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What? 20 padlitical officid elected in Kern County and has no
21 A. Vagueexamples. | can't remember back that 21 other forma oversight.
22 far, but when legidators wanted to send FCMAT into 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have anopinion asto
23 San Francisco and when legidators wanted to send FCMAT | 23 what kind of oversight of FCMAT would be useful ?
24 into West Contra Costa, | recall those. There may have 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
25 been other times. 25 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetica. Vague and
Page 394 Page 396
1 Q. Andonthoseoccasions, what job wereyou 1 ambiguousasto "useful.”
2 filling at the time? 2 THE WITNESS: No.
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But you're concerned that there
4 THE WITNESS: Boy, different jobs at different 4 isinsufficient oversight?
5 times. 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you haveanopinionasto 6 asto "concerned" and "oversight.”
7 the contribution FCMAT makes to the efficient operation 7 MR. VIRJEE: Also asked and answered.
8 of the schoal system in the state of Cdifornia? 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible
9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 9 opinion.
10 to"contribution" and "efficient.” Callsfor 10 THE WITNESS: That's my opinion.
11 speculation. Compound. 11 (Exhibit SAD-254 was marked.)
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mgoing to ask you about some
13 inadmissible opinion. 13 commentsthat you made on the lawsuit. Well mark as
14 THE WITNESS: | only have an opinion. There 14 Exhibit 254 an article from AP Online dated May 18th,
15 areinstances where they have done what | thought was 15 2000, headline ACLU sues Cdlifornia over schoals.
16 good work, and instances where it was okay. 16 Takealook at this, and I'm going to ask you
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Socompared with -- if you put 17 about the quotes from John Mock. And also you're quoted
18 theLittle Hoover Commission on the D-plus scale, where 18 onthe next page aswell as John Mockler.
19 would you put FCMAT? 19 MR. JORDAN: Just for the record, I've got a
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 20 question mark in the margin next to my copy of that,
21 Cdlsfor inadmissible opinion. Overly broad. 21 which| presumewas notinthe origind.
22 THE WITNESS: FCMAT doestoo many thingsintoo | 22 MR. JACOBS: | think what happened here is that
23 many areasto answer that question in any other way. 23 the AP Online printed out twice. Some of the language
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthat something you view asa 24 isrepeated. | don't know why.
25 negative? Do you believe that they have too many 25 Q. Letmeaskyou about the quotes on -- as quoted
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on page 104 of John Mockler as opposed to on 103 of John
Mock. And my question to you is going to be whether
these are accurate.

It says, starting in the middle of page 104,
John Mockler, executive director of the State Board of
Education, said there are laws to ensure that schools
are kept clean and safe, but no agency to monitor them.
Disparities between school facilities, particularly
those in the same district, depend primarily on local
digtricts, he said. That's afunction of the
distribution of funds, he said. It'safunction of
local management and of patterns of atendance.

And then after aquote from -- or &fter a
paraphrase from Catherine Lhamon it says, Mockler
countered that neither the Board of Education nor the
Department of Education have the power to require schoal
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of attendance.
MR. JORDAN: Callsfor hearsay.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Would that capture the
substance of your comments?
MR. JORDAN: Callsfor hearsay.
MR. VIRJEE: If you recall.
THEWITNESS: | dont believeit does.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inwhat way?
A.  Becauseit doesn't make any sensethe way it's
written.
Q. Doyourecall what you said on that score?
MR. JORDAN: Callsfor hearsay.
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to what score.
THE WITNESS: It related back to theissue
before. 1t smply said local districts determine where

17 digrictsto spend money evenly between schools. Only 17 kidsgo to school and how to maintain the facilities
18 thelegidature could requirethat, he said. 18 whenthey go to schoal.
19 Those statements that the article attributes to 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthen Mockler countered that
20 you, did those -- did that accurately capture the 20 neither the Board of Education nor the Department of
21 substance of your comments to the reporter? 21 Education have the power to require school districtsto
22 A. No. 22 spend money evenly between schools. Only the
23 Q. Inwhat way did they not? 23 legidature could require that, he said.
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question. 24 Doesthat capture the substance of your
25 THE WITNESS: Which statement? 25 commentsto the reporter?
Page 398 Page 400
1 Q BY MR.JACOBS: Youwantto go oneby one? 1 MR. JORDAN: Cadlsfor hearsay.
2 A. Aslrecdl -- what'sthe comment? 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question. Objection.
3 Q. Wecandoitonebyoneif youdlike. The 3 THE WITNESS: Not accurate. What | said wasiit
4 first onewas, there are laws to ensure that schools are 4 would be foolish to spend money equally on schools.
5 kept clean and safe, but no agency to monitor them. 5 Some have more needs than others. And the reporter
6 Disparities between school facilities, particularly 6 said, shouldn't it be spent equally? And | said, no,
7 thoseinthe same district, depend primarily on local 7 butif you want that done, only the legislature can do
8 didtricts. 8 that, the Board can't.
9 Did that accurately capture the substance of 9 MR. VIRJEE: Isthisagood chancetotakea
10 your comments? 10 bresk?
11 MR. JORDAN: Cdlsfor hearsay. 11 MR. JACOBS: Sure.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 12 (Recess taken.)
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question. 13 MR. JACOBS: | want to ask you about one more
14 THE WITNESS: Asl recall the conversation -- 14 article about school construction issues.
15 I'mnot certain | even talked to thisboard, as | recdl 15 (Exhibit SAD-255 was marked.)
16 a thistime-- | said there are public health and 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Weve marked as Exhibit 255 an
17 safety lawsthat require schools and other public 17 articlefrom The Dally News of Los Angeles dated May 27,
18 facilitieslocaly to be clean and safe, but the State 18 1999. Headline, group plots strategy for building new
19 isnot the agency to monitor them. 19 school campuses acrossLA. And | want to focus you on
20 Second issue was in digtricts some schools 20 the quote toward the bottom of the page. I'll read it
21 being good -- well maintained and somenot. I'msaying | 21 intotherecord, the problemisthat to build schoolsin
22 thaisalocd district decision, the State doesn't -- 22 thiscircumstance, you go after someone's property
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andthenthat, quote, that'sa | 23 adversely, end quote, which means upsetting people, said
24 function of the distribution of funds, close quote, you 24 education finance consultant John Mockler, noting the
25 sadit'safunction of locad management and of patterns 25 site selected often is the one opposed by the least
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1 people 1 would put the State in charge of local school decisions.
2 Do you seethat? 2 Quote, it's up to the school digtricts to implement the
3 A ldo 3 poalicies of the State, close quote, he said.
4 Q. Doyoubdievethat finding land in the Los 4 Doesthat capture the substance of your
5 Angees Unified School District on which to build 5 satementsto the author of this article?
6 schoolsisone of the mgjor obstacles to easing 6 MR. JORDAN: Callsfor hearsay.
7 overcrowdingin LAUSD? 7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 evidence. Overly broad. Compound question.
9 to"obstacles" Vagueastotimeand calsfor 9 THE WITNESS: | don't recall talking to this
10 speculation. 10 reporter at al. | don't recall these statements.
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor inadmissible opinion. 11 What'sthe question?
12 Overly broad. 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Y ou've answered question,
13 THEWITNESS: Yes. 13 Mr. Mockler.
14 MR. JORDAN: Lack of foundation. 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you recal -- doyou recdl
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doyouhaveinmind any state 15 that these statements are different from what you were
16 levd initiatives that would help address that 16 thinking at the time about the cross-complaint that was
17 dtudion? 17 filed against the school districts?
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
19 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. 19 evidence. Assumesthat he was thinking about it at all.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague and ambiguous asto 20 Cadlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
21 “sateleve initiatives." 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes that he made these
22 THE WITNESS: No. 22 statements.
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doyou bdievethatit'sa 23 THE WITNESS: | don't recdll these statements.
24 problem to be addressed solely within LAUSD? 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Youdon't recal what you were
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an 25 thinking at the time?
Page 402 Page 404
1 inadmissible opinion. Overly broad. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in
2 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "solely 2 evidence. Assumes he made these statements.
3 addressed." Callsfor speculation. Incomplete 3 THE WITNESS: Yes.
4 hypothetical. 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And, therefore, you can't say
5 THEWITNESS: | find the question impossible to 5 oneway or the other whether these statements attributed
6 answer asgiven. 6 toyou are not consistent with your thinking at the
7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Do you haveinmind any 7 time?
8 solution anywhere to the problem of acquiring land for 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
9 schoolsin LAUSD? 9 Lacksfoundation. Asked and answered.
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. 10 THE WITNESS: Yes.
11 Incomplete hypothetical question. Lacks foundation. 11 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Yes, that's correct?
12 Cdlsfor speculation. Callsfor aninadmissible 12 A, Yes
13 opinion. 13 Q. Let meask you about some comment you made at
14 THE WITNESS: Strength and courage of aloca 14 an AAP annua meeting.
15 school district governing board. 15 (Exhibit SAD-257 was marked.)
16 MR. JACOBS:. I'mgoingto ask you about ancther | 16 Q.  BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisan article from
17 quote about the lawsdit. 17 Educational Marketer, dated February 14th, 2000.
18 (Exhibit SAD-256 was marked.) 18 Headline, AAP annual meeting puts focus on California,
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisan aticledated 19 Horidaand Texas. And you are paraphrased and quoted
20 December 14th, 2000 from the Modesto Bee. Headling, | 20 onthefirst page of this, and | want to focus you on
21 Merced schoals are sued over nonexistent policy. And 21 thelast portion of what you're quoted as saying.
22 thearticle states toward the bottom, John Mockler 22 So devel oping good materials and training good
23 Governor Davis interim secretary of education, said the 23 teachersisincumbent because the law says you can't not
24 State sued the schoal digtricts to protect their 24 pass someone if they don't have access to education.
25 autonomy. Hesaid if the ACLU had won its lawsuit, it 25 There'sarea lega morass you could open up, Mockler
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said.

Do you seethat?

| think there are more negatives in that
statement than in any question |'ve asked today,

Mr. Mockler, | must say.

Did you say that at that meeting?
A. lhopenot.

MR. JACOBS: Let the record reflect laughter
al around.

Q. Didyou say something dong those lines?
A. Yes

Q.  Andwere your comments with reference to
algebraonly, or also with respect to other content
areas?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
and calls for speculation. Also to the extent you're
asking about quoted material, the document speaks for
itself.

MR. JORDAN: Or it cdlsfor hearsay.

THE WITNESS: | was talking about the math
adoption in which we adopted a gebra books in January of
'01. | believethisisabout ayear before that time.

So that was implementation of those standards. | was
talking about making sure that teachers were trained on
the materials that they had because that's how you do
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have an opinion asto
the sufficiency of current state programsto train
teachers for English language learners?

MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Incomplete hypothetica question. Callsfor an
inadmissible opinion. Calls for speculation.

MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto
"sufficiency” and "program.”

THEWITNESS: | think the-- | believe the
English language arts, English language devel opment
instructional materials adopted by the State Board last
month combined with the training on those materias with
respect to English learners will elevate the sufficiency
of that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anddevateit -- do you have
an opinion asto what level it will be elevated to?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to"level." Calsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
Cadlsfor an expert opinion.

THE WITNESS: | think the emphasis on the needs
of English learnersin those materials and the training
provided on those materiasis aquantum lesp in
academic sufficiency for al students, but especialy
English learners.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthat isthe extent of your
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good education for kids.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let me ask you about how you do
good teaching for English language learners.

Do you have any information about whether there
are sufficient numbers of teacherstrained in teaching
English language learnersin the state of Cdifornia?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "sufficient." Callsfor speculation and lacks
foundation. Callsfor an expert opinion.

THE WITNESS: No specific information on that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Have you made any
recommendations in the last three years about policies
that would expand the pool of qualified teachers for
English language learners?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to"qualified.” Callsfor speculation. Lacks
foundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. Also object
to the extent it invades the attorney/client privilege
or the deliberative process or officia information
privilege.

THE WITNESS: | don't recall specifically,
except with respect to the integration of the English
learner teacher program and the reading language arts
EDL adoption, some discussion on that. Vaguely remember
talking something about that, but that's al | remember.
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opinion on the level to which it will be elevated?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: The State Board does not dedl
with teacher issues of that sort, we deal with
professional development after they are teachers.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sotheanswer to my question
is, | don't have --

A. | haveno particular information.
Q.  Youdont have any further opinion on that
topic?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THEWITNESS: Yes.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Wegot alist of topicsthat |
mentioned that you have substantive working knowledge
about, and | think we've talked about most of them, but
let mejust find out if I've missed any aress.

On the issue of the condition of textbooks that
are available to students, do you have any data,
anecdotd or otherwise, about whether students in the
state of California-- about whether theré'san issuein
the state of California about the condition of textbooks
that students receive?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "condition." Callsfor speculation and lacks
foundation.

45 (Pages 405 to 408)




PEBoo~w~ooswNE

NRNNNNRNNRE R R R R R
ORWONRPROOONOUDWN

Page 409

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
"issue."

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What information do you have?

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.

THE WITNESS: | have minimum anecdotal
information, some limited survey information, some
limited polling information, much of which is outdated.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Survey information dating back
to your days when you were representing the publishers?
A. Yes

Q. Andwhat wasthefirst category of information?

MR. SEFERIAN: Will you read his answer,

please.

(Record read.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isany of the survey and
polling data not outdated?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "outdated." Callsfor speculation.

THEWITNESS: I've beentold, | have no
independent knowledge, that there is some survey
information done by the Department of Education's
curriculum division, that they've done some surveys.
That's the extent of my knowledge.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And those surveys are directed,
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you did survey work for
the -- when you looked at surveys for the publishers,
was one of the issues how old the textbooks were?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "how old." Callsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: | didn't do surveys for the
publishers.

MR. JACOBS: | don't think that was my
guestion.

(Record read.)

MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you looked at surveys
for -- when you were working for the publishers, was one
of the issues on the surveys the currency of the
textbooks?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "currency." Overbroad. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumes the surveys had anything to do with
Cdifornia. Calsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: A vaguerecollection, yes. There
was some information on that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How do you recall that being
measured?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "measured.”

©CooO~NOULE, WN B

NNNNNNNRBR R RRRR R PR
ORWONFRPOOONOURWNRO

Page 410

as you understand it, to condition of textbooksin part?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "condition." Callsfor speculation.

MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: | believe they have relationship
to purchase decisions which would, by proxy, have some
issue of condition.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And onthe anecdota side, do
you have any non-outdated anecdotd information about
textbook condition?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "textbook condition." Also vague and ambiguous as to
"non-outdated.” Callsfor speculation and incomplete
hypothetical asto whether it would be or would not be
outdated in any circumstance.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Anocther issuethat weve raised
in the lawsuit is that students have -- some students
have textbooks that are outdated.

Do you have any information on the prevalence
of students having textbooks that are outdated?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "outdated." Callsfor speculation.

THEWITNESS: | have no ideawhat "outdated"
means.
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MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.

THEWITNESS: The measure used in the statute
is consistent with the cycle, which would be
instructional materids, broadly stated, that are no
more than six or eight, depending on the subject, years
old. | believethat's generally been the standard, but
I'm not sure of that.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any information
using that definition of -- using that dividing line
between current and noncurrent, do you have any
information on the prevalence of the usein Cdifornia
schools of outdated textbooks?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "outdated." Callsfor speculation and lacks
foundation.

THE WITNESS: No specific information.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have generd
information?
A. No.

MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Ancther issueinthelawsuit is
that in some schools substitute teachers are used
essentialy in lieu of regular full-time teachers
assigned to the classroom.

Do you have any information on the prevalence
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Page 415

1 of the use of substitute teachersin that way? 1 THE WITNESS: My opinion isthat multi-track
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 2 year-round has nothing to do with opportunity to learn.
3 to"inlieuof." Assumesfactsnotinevidence. 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And that'strue for -- isthat
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical 4 truefor al of the flavors of multi-track year-around
5 question. 5 that you're aware of?
6 THEWITNESS: No. 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Yourelisted here as having 7 Incomplete hypothetical question. Cdllsfor an
8 substantive working knowledge regarding the topic of 8 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous as to
9 prevaence of subgtitute teachers. 9 "flavors." Callsfor speculation. Vague astotime.
10 Do you have any information asto the 10 THE WITNESS: In my opinion, yes.
11 prevalence of substitute teachers in some other way? 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthere any datathat you
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 arerelying on for that opinion?
13 to"prevalence.” 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered. 14 MR. VIRJEE: It's aso vague and ambiguous as
15 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks 15 to"data"
16 foundation. 16 THEWITNESS: No.
17 THE WITNESS: No. 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isitanimpression?
18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: On multi-tracking do you have 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
19 anopinion asto the impact of multi-tracking on 19 THEWITNESS: Yes.
20 opportunity to learn? And by opportunity to learn | 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And no morethan animpression?
21 meantobeusingitintheway | believeyou useditin 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 your November 1st, 2000 memorandum. 22 to"impression."
23 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou want to tell him the exhibit 23 THE WITNESS: | have witnessed quality programs
24  number and hell get it in front of him. 24 in many forms of multi-track year-round programs. |
25 MR. JACOBS: 251. 25 have witnessed bad instructional programsin dl
Page 414 Page 416
1 MR. VIRJEE: Which page? 1 configurations of multi-track and other configurations
2 MR. JACOBS:. Page 3. 2 of schooling.
3 Q. Letmeaskyou, what did you mean there by 3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: And by witness, what do you
4 "opportunity to learn"? 4 mean?
5 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou want to point out the 5 A. Observed, watched, looked at, touched, talked
6 paragraph for him. 6 to.
7 MR. JACOBS: It's paragraph 4 under recommended 7 Q. Byhaving goneto school sites?
8 action. 8 A. Yes
9 MR. VIRJEE: Paragraph 4 under recommended 9 Q. Andhaveyoudoneany of that in thelast four
10 action. 10 years?
11 THE WITNESS: | meant that students subject to 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
12 thehigh school exit exam had areasonable opportunity 12 THE WITNESS: No.
13 to haveingtruction on the standards tested in the high 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Themulti-track program that's
14 school exit exam. 14 youlooked at, were they Concept 6 programs?
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have an opinion onthe 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
16 degree to which multi-tracking affects the opportunity 16 speculation.
17 tolearn as so defined? 17 THEWITNESS: Yes.
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Incomplete 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you recal what Concept 6
19 hypothetica question. Lacks foundation. Callsfor 19 dteyouwerelooking at?
20 inadmissible opinion. Callsfor speculation. Vague and 20 A. No.
21 ambiguous asto "multi-tracking." Vague astotime. 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
22 Overly broad. 22 speculdion.
23 THEWITNESS: Yes. 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Yourelisted as having
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion? 24 substantive working knowledge on the issue of number of
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 25 ingtructional days, and | think the only way that's come
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1 upinthelawsuitisin the context of multi-tracking. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Cadllsfor an inadmissible
2 | take it that it is your opinion that the fact 2 opinion.
3 that the number of school days under Concept 6 3 THE WITNESS: It is my opinion based on
4 multi-tracking is less than the number of school days 4 observation, not on analytical study.
5 under atraditional academic year or non-Concept 6 5 Q BY MR. JACOBS: At one point in the last couple
6 multi-tracking is aso not correlated with educationa 6 of yearsthere was a proposal to lengthen the school
7 achievement; isthat correct? 7 year for certain grades, | guess, in the state.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Will you read back that question, 8 Do you recall that discussion?
9 please. 9 A, Yes
10 (Record read.) 10 Q. Andwhat do you recal of the proposal in
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Vague and 11 question?
12 ambiguous and nonsensical. And grammatically incorrect. 12 A. | believe the proposal wasto alow or to
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor 13 provide incentives for middle schools to extend the days
14 inadmissible opinion. 14  and hours which students would go to schoal.
15 THEWITNESS: | don't understand your question. 15 Q. Did you participate in discussions about that
16 Canyou makeit smaller? 16 puzzle?
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sure. You understand that 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection to the extent it calls
18 Concept 6 multi-tracking has a different number of 18 for attorney/client privilege or official information or
19 school days than regular multi-tracking? 19 ddiberative process privilege.
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 20 THE WITNESS: Yes.
21 asto "regular multi-tracking.” 21 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: And what discussions do you
22 THEWITNESS: | understand Concept 6 has fewer 22 recall that you participated in?
23 days. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthat it aso hasfewer days 24 for disclosure of privileged communications.
25 thanthe regular academic school year? 25 THE WITNESS: Many.
Page 418 Page 420
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 1 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou-- wereyou urging a
2 asto"regular.” 2 paticular -- did you have aview on whether that
3 THEWITNESS: In Cdlifornia 3 proposa was agood idea or not?
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: InCdlifornia, yes? 4 A Yes
5 A. InCdifornia, yes. 5 Q. What wasyour view?
6 Q. Anddo you have an opinion on whether that 6 A. Thattheaddition of ingtructiona time for
7 reduced number of instructional days has an impact on 7 students and preparation and study time for school
8 opportunity to learn? 8 daff, especidly in middle schoals, would be alarge
9 MR. JORDAN: Object to "instructional days." 9 gepinimproving instruction in those schools.
10 Ambiguous. 10 Q. Andwhydidyou bdieveit would bealarge
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 11 sep?
12 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
13 THE WITNESS: Do | have an opinion? Yes. 13 Lacksfoundation. Cadlsfor an expert opinion.
14 MR. JORDAN: Actually, misstates too. 14 THE WITNESS: Becauseit would raise the
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isyour opinion? 15 remuneraion and pay for staff in those schoals, and it
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 16 would provide time to those staff and those studentsto
17 THE WITNESS: My opinion is that the number of 17 betrained to reconfigure how they provide education to
18 daysor number of hours, per se, in their mix does not, 18 adolescent kids.
19 per seg, affect student achievement. 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. And areyou saying that the
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doesthat meanthatitis 20 amount of ingtructional time itself was not one of the
21 loosdly correlated with student achievement in your 21 thingsthat commended that proposal to you?
22 view? 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Misstatesthe
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 23 witness testimony. Incomplete hypothetical question.
24 to"correlated." Callsfor speculation. Lacks 24 MR. VIRJEE: Also callsfor speculation. Lacks
25 foundation and incomplete hypothetical. 25 foundation. Callsfor an expert opinion.
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1 THE WITNESS: It was my view that the 1 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'stakethefirst category.
2 instructiona time increase, number of instructional 2 Doyou havein mind any programs that you believe should
3 hours, would be helpful. 3 beterminated?
4 Q. BY MR. JACOBS. What isyour understandingof | 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
5 the-- of the obstacles that led to that proposal not 5 Incomplete hypothetical question. Callsfor an
6 being adopted? Why was that proposal not, in the end, 6 inadmissible opinion. Overly broad.
7 adopted? ‘ 7 MR. VIRJEE: Calsfor speculation.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 8 THEWITNESS: I'd have to have awholelist of
9 Lacksfoundation. And overbroad was to why something 9 programsto answer that question. | can't do them off
10 wasn't adopted. 10 thetop of my head.
11 THE WITNESS: It's difficult to provide 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Youdon't haveanyin mind?
12 fundamental changein a system, that was 1; No. 2, the 12 A. Not off thetop of my head.
13 proposal was not well explained; and No. 3, theeconomy | 13 Q.  Haveyou, inthelast severd years, done any
14 went in the tank and we ran out of money. 14 thinking that led to arecommendation in that
15 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Wasit dso the casg, sir, that 15 connection?
16 schoolsthat were on multi-track year-round schedules 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cals
17 would have difficulty adopting the proposed additional 17 for privileged communications.
18 instructiona time? 18 THEWITNESS: Yes.
19 MR. JORDAN: Calsfor speculation. 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What are you now thinking of in
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 20 answering that question?
21 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cals
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper 22 for privileged communications.
23 hypothetical question. 23 THE WITNESS: As| understood the question,
24 THE WITNESS: No. 24 havel ever thought about thet.
25 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Why wasthat? 25 MR. JACOBS: Thet led to arecommendation.
Page 422 Page 424
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
2 THEWITNESS: | recdll discussions on both 2 to"recommendation.”
3 sidesof that issue asto whether or not multi-track and 3 THEWITNESS: Yes, | just don't have the stuff
4 Concept 6 multi-track, in what manner could they 4 infront of meto explain that.
5 participate, and there were a variety of very positive 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wasitinyour capacity as
6 proposalsfrom school districts who used multi-track 6 executive director of the State Board?
7 that seemed to hold promiseto fulfill in that area. 7 MR. VIRJEE: Object on the grounds of
8 MR. JACOBS: Well take a couple minutes and 8 attorney/client privilege and official information
9 then | may beabletoturnit over to you guys. 9 privilege and the deliberative process privilege.
10 (Recess taken.) 10 THEWITNESS: No.
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you havean opinion, sir, as 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wasitinany -- in acapacity
12 towhether there are any programsthat are currently 12 predating your assignment as interim secretary?
13 part of the education budget that should be contracted 13 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.
14 inther spending levels because they are not ddlivering 14 THEWITNESS: Yes.
15 resultsfor the expenditure? 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What capacity?
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
17 Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an expert opinion. 17 tocapacity.
18 Overbroad. And vague and ambiguous asto "contracted.” 18 THE WITNESS: Capacity as an old person who has
19 THEWITNESS: Yes. 19 written many of the laws and recommended many different
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What'syour opinion on that 20 thingsover time. I'm asked often about that issue, and
21 subject? 21 weve developed a series of alternatives over the last
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 22 20o0r soyearsonthatissue. | cant recitedll the
23 THE WITNESS: Some programs should be 23 particulars of those right now, but there are many of
24 terminated, some should be combined, some should be 24 them.
25 increased. 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How about from 1995 through the
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present, have you done sufficient thinking to put pen to
paper and create awriting in which you recommended that
some programs be terminated?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation
as to whether or not the thinking was sufficient. If
you're asking whether he put a pen to paper and provided
such writing, I'll object to the documents speak for
themsalves to the extent that they exist.

THE WITNESS: | think probably. | don't know
the timeline, but probably.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Andwhat context?
A.  Okay. Proposed categorica reform four or five
times as a-- working with awide variety of interest
groups on how to make the system more efficient, more
effective and concentrate on primary purposes.
Q.  Whenyou say "we," are you talking about you
and in your capacity as a consultant?
A.  Asaconsultant with other people who have
interest in making the system work better and more
efficiently and effectively in alot of different venues
and occasions.
Q. Canyou give methe most recent instancein
which you've worked on that question?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "that question.”
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vagueastotime.

MR. JACOBS: And by time, | mean since 1995.

MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
"studies."

THEWITNESS: Yes.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What studies?
A.  Studies may be too specific aword. When | was
in private consulting practice we were asked to combine
certain categorica programs and fund them. 1've been
asked by numerous legidators over time as to how to
merge programs to focus them. They've asked my advice,
I've givenit. Sometimes they take it, mostly they
don't.
Q. Arethereany programsthat -- aside from
combining them into a single program, are there any
programs that you believe are resulting in the
expenditure of money in away that is not
cost-effective?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "cost-effective.” Callsfor speculation and calls
for an expert opinion, and incomplete hypothetica.

THE WITNESS: As| understand the question, no.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andsotoputitalittle
differently, when you've been asked your opinionin
these various contexts that we've been talking aboutt,
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THE WITNESS: A combining avariety of

instructional materials allocations.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou were?

A.  Inmy current position.

Q. Sothat was-- I'mtrying to understand the
context here. That was a proposa or recommendation
that you made in your capacity as executive director?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "proposal." And
object to the extent it would invade the officid
information privilege or invade the attorney/client
privilege.

THE WITNESS: Read the question back.

(Record read.)

THE WITNESS: Correction. No. My capacity as
aperson who has looked at this issue many times and was
asked my opinion.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Who asked your opinion?
A. A vaiety of people.

Q. Meaning thisisan ideathat you have
propounded in severa different contexts?

A. Yes

Q. Letmeask you-- let me approach it from this
guestion. Have you worked on any studies that included
recommendations that programs be terminated?
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Mockler, is there any money we can save in the system
that's not being spent cost-effectively, have you had
any -- have you had a positive answer to that question?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
and misstates his testimony. Callsfor speculation.

MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
for privileged communications.

THE WITNESS: Not to my knowledge.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: So then to approach it dightly
differently, your recommendations along the line of
improving the cost-effectiveness of the system have been
confined to combining programs; is that correct?

A. In the main. There may have been exceptionsto
that rule.

Q. Andasyou sit here today?

A. Defund A to fund B, not that A is ineffective

or inefficient, just its relative merit is not as --

Q. So in the context of defunding A in order to

fund B, do you recall any of the A's?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Vague asto time.

THE WITNESS: Not off the top of my head, but
they're numerous. Lot of those. | can't remember any
specific example.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Asyou sit here today, do you
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1 havean opinionthat -- looking at the current 1 plug up some of them.
2 dlocation of moniesto various programs, do you havein 2 Q. BY MR JORDAN: Youmentioned that you had some
3 mindany A'sthat should be defunded in order to fund 3 of your data from the -- the Stanford-9 data. Y ou're
4 anyB's? 4 talking about the AP database?
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 5 A. Welook at the AP database, we aso take a
6 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Callsfor 6 look at the comparison of thet to the standards tests, |
7 anexpert opinion. 7 beievel said the STAR system, so substantialy it's
8 THEWITNESS: I'd have to have a series of 8 the Stanford-9, but we also cross-check that with the
9 programsin front of meto realy answer that question 9 standards tests and the percent correct on standards
10 verywedl. | don't have aparticular example. It's not 10 tedts.
11 coming to my mind. 11 Q. [I'mtrying to get a whether there's any other
12 MR. JACOBS: | have no further questions. 12 datathan this Board member that you're relying on
13 MR. HAJELA: | don't have any questions. 13 that's not posted on the Internet?
14 MR. JORDAN: I'vegot just acouple here. 14 A.  Therésarecent study done, | think -- | can't
15 EXAMINATION BY MR. JORDAN 15 remember the name of it -- who did a national report on
16 Q. Yesterday, and | won't purport to be able to 16 successful schools with students that current -- the
17 quotethe context exactly, but you testified that there 17 current belief isthat there are less than high
18 were members of the Board who had been principas at 18 achieving studentsin schools that are achieving.
19 schoolsthat were similar and had similar resources to 19 MR. HAJELA: | think | can be helpful there.
20 some schools in the underperforming schools program but 20 If youcall Darryl Steinberg's office, they had a
21 who had made progress. 21 committee and they had a hearing where that study was
22 Do you remember your testimony along those 22 talked about. | don't know the name of that study
23 lines? 23 dither.
24 A. Ingenerd, yes. 24 Q. BY MR. JORDAN: Doesthet sound like the study
25 Q. Canyouidentify which Board membersthat you 25 you'retaking about?
Page 430 Page 432
1 werethinking of when you gave that testimony? 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
2 A. Nancylchinaga. 2 Lacksfoundation.
3 Q. Anybodydse? 3 THE WITNESS: There are such studies. I've
4 A. Not on the Board, no. 4  seenthem. Thereare such schoals.
5 Q. Okay. Do you happen to know which school or 5 Q. BY MR JORDAN: I should ask the further
6 schools Nancy Ichinagawas principa of? 6 question whether there are any in Los Angeles Unified
7 A. |bdieveit's Bennettkew in Inglewood. | 7 that you know of that you could point to?
8 bdievethat's-- 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
9 Q. Dont supposeyou can spel that for us. 9 Lacksfoundation. Calsfor an expert opinion.
10 A B-e-n-n-et-t-k-e-w. 10 MR. SEFERIAN: V ague and ambiguous as to "point
11 MR. VIRJEE: You didn't ask himto spell it 11 to."
12 right. 12 THE WITNESS: | believe the answer is yes, but
13 Q. BY MR.JORDAN: That'sin Inglewood, right? 13 [I'll haveto go check.
14 A, Yes 14 Q. BY MR.JORDAN: Just asyou'resitting here,
15 Q. Anyother schoolsthat you had inmind whenyou | 15 you can't think of any?
16 were making that statement? 16 A. Byname, no, but| dorecal looking at alist
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor 17 and seeing a couple pop up.
18 speculation. 18 Q. Whatlist doyou recal looking at?
19 THEWITNESS: | have anumber of schools. | 19 A. It'sacomputer printout with the data
20 can't giveyou al their namesright now. Eight, ten, 20 Q. Now I'vegot toask, what computer printout was
21 twenty and more schools that are dedling with a 21 it?
22 difficult population, populations that come to us with 22 A. ldontrecal. I'vejust seenit.
23 less educationa experience throughout Californiawho 23 MR. JORDAN: That'sal | have.
24 have done substantially better than other schoals of the 24 (The deposition concluded at 4:20 p.m.)
25 typethat you can actually cal up on the Internet and 25 ---000---
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

| certify that the witness in the foregoing

deposition,
JOHN MOCKLER,

was by me duly sworn to testify the truth, the whole
truth, in the within-entitled cause; that said
deposition was taken at the time and place therein
named; that the testimony of said witness was reported
by me, aduly certified shorthand reporter and a
disinterested person, and was thereafter transcribed
into typewriting.

| further certify that | am not of counsel or
attorney for either or any of the partiesto said cause,
nor in any way interested in the outcome of the cause
named in said deposition.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand
this 4th day of February, 2002.

TRACY LEE MOORELAND, CSR 10397
State of Cdlifornia
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DEPONENT'S CHANGES OR CORRECTIONS
Note: If you are adding to your testimony, print the
exact words you want to add. If you are deleting from
your testimony, print the exact words you want to
delete. Specify with "Add" or "Delete" and sign this
form.
DEPOSITION OF:  JOHN MOCKLER, VOLUME II
CASE: WILLIAMSVS STATE
DATE OF DEPOSITION: THURSDAY, JANUARY 24, 2002
1, , have the following
corrections to make to my deposition:

PAGE LINE CHANGE/ADD/DELETE

JOHN MOCKLER DATE
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